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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited (the "Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss and statement of
cash flows for the year ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatery information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Siandards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilted our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion on the financial statements,

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information, The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's directors’ report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements of our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section

134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view

of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting

principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of

the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with

the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting

frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; makirfna
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judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
te going concern and using the gaing concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected fo influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstaterment resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override ofinternal control.

*  Qbtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate intemal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conciude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material unceriainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internai control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the Central
Govemment of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and bslief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the statement of cash flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

&. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 faken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 3t March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B”,

B. With respect ta the other matters to be inctuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rutes, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanatians given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 31 to the financial statements. :

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note 45 (vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds}
by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in wriling or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

«  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note 45 (vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (*Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shail:

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or

+  provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

/;_,/,E’;:z-‘x iji) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriatw
VIS N
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in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i} and (ii} above contain any material misstatement,

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(18) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

c.fo_’.éo'é“?

Jaymin Sheth

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.. 114583
Date: 28 September 2022 ICAI UDIN:22114583AWHJY12471
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schioss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year 2020-21. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
discrepancy was noficed on such verification

(< According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the titie deeds of inmovabile properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company,
except for the following which are not held in the name of the Company:

® (®

Description Gross Held in the Whether | Period held- | Reason
of property carrying name of promeoter, indicate for not
value director or range, being
{INR in their relative where held in
Millions) or employee | appropriate the
name of
the
Compan
y. Also
indicate
ifin
dispute
5.0MW (1.25 | 0.55 M/s. Sarjan | No 07 January | Title
MW of 4 Nos) Realities 2021 deeds
Wind mill Limited are in the
at process
Kudrekonda of
State forest, transfer
Davanagere
District,
Karnataka B
(d)  According to the information and expianations given to us and on the basis of our examination
ofthe records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or intangible assets or both during the year.
(@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion_£f
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory

{b)  According to the information and explanations given o us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in companies,
firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties. Tha Company has not provided guarantee
and security nor has granted loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other
parties during the year. The Company has granted unsecured loans to employees during the
year in respect of which the requisite information is as below.

(@) Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans to employees as below:

Particulars Loans (INR in millions)
Aggregate amount during the year 0.5v
Loans to employees
Balance autstanding as at balance sheet date 0.23
Loans to employees

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our apinion the terms and conditions of the grant of (oans to employees
provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c}  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the schedule of repayment loans given to employees {which as
per the Company policy is interest free) is stipulated. The payment of principal has been regutar.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

{e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no [oan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settls the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

N According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of

repayment.
(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are no loans,
,,/;f;"'c';“' guarantees and securities in respect of which provision of section 185 of the Act are applicable.
7z 2 ﬁ-—- ccording to the information and explanation given to us, the provisions of 186 (except suw

7 ‘C -
o3y 14@%@ '0
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Continued)

section (1) of section 186) of the Act, are not applicable to the Company since the Company is
engaged in the business of providing infrastructure facilities. According to the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not made any investment during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accerdingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.
{vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have iiability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise and Sales tax
during the year since effective 1 Juiy 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues have been
regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities. As explained fo us, the
Company did not have any dues on Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employess State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory
duss were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date

they became payabls.
(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Value added Tax and Service Tax
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

(vii) (a)

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum Remarks
statute the dues (INR in which the where , if any
Millions) amount dispute Is
relates pending
Finance Act, | Service tax 3741 April  2007- | Customs
1994 Dec 2012 Excise and
Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal
Finance Act, | VAT 1.12 2015-2016 Joint
1694 Commissione
r
of
Commercial
Taxes
(Appeals)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
reviously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessmenls under thﬁ/
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schioss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

{ix) (a8 According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender,

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

(c} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, ténmn loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(dy  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(&)  The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022. Accordingly, clause 3(ix){e} is not
applicable.

f) According to the information and explanations given io us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

(x}(@  The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a} of the Order is not applicable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential aliotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b} of the Order is not applicable.

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit,

{b) According 1o the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12} of
Seclion 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{c)  As represented to us by the management, there are no whistie blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

{xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

{xiii) The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the pravisions of Saction 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

tn our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
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(Continued)

{xvi) (a)

{b)

{c}

(d)

{xvii)

(xviii)

{xix}

not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persens connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Saection 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){b} of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC} as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company Is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core [nvestment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)}d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs. 1,031.43 million in the current financial year and
Rs. 1,100.04 million in the immediately preceding financiat year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable.

We draw attention to Note 2.2 ta the financial statements which explaing that the Company has
incurred losges in cumrent year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at
31 March 2022. Further, the Company's current liabilities exceed its current assets as at
31 March 2022 by Rs, 1,006.53 million.

During the first three months of the year, the Company witnessed softer revenues due to the
second wave of COVID-19 and consequent lockdowns in several states across the country.
Also there was a third wave in the month of January 2022, resulting in restrictions in some
states, which also adversely impacted the revenues. This year the Company has seen quite an
improvement in business over the previous year, as this year the Cempany had lesser impact
of COVID-19 with lesser restrictions. During the year, the Company has obtained working capital
loan from 2 Bank which has resulted in increase in cash balance as at 31 March 2022. Based
on these initiatives undertaken by the Company. there is adequate cash balance to meet its
obligations.

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examinafion of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Seclion 135 are not applicable to /LQ?
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{Continued)

Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx}(b} of the Order are nct applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248WAN-100022

J-sheits

Jaymin Sheth

Partner
Piace: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 28 September 2022 ICAI UDIN:22114583AWHJY[2471
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the financial statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)}f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Schloss Bangalore
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adeguate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Diractors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note, These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and ervors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We condusted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
sialements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemnal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstaterment of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion an the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

ny's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
gasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Continued)

statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a malerial effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountanls
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/MW-100022

PR

Jaymin Sheth

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 28 September 2022 ICAl UDIN:22114583AWHJY(2471
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

{Rupees in millions)

. Asal Asat
Particulars Note 33 March 2022 31 March 2021
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 3 201.70 193.73
Reserves and surplus 4 {1,945.001}) {47697}

(1,743.31) (283.24)
Non-current lizbilities
Long-term borrowings 5 14,599,583 12,936.51
Qther Jong-term liabilities 3 327.82 168.36
Long-term provisions T 2770 3527
14,955.05 13,140.14
Cuorrvent liabilities
Shan-term borrowings 8 1,411.08 187.88
Trade payables 9
- Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 21.08 2262
- Dues of creditors other than muicro enterprises and small enterprises 44.00 130,32
Other current Jiabilities 1o 22278 1,461.68
Short-term provisions 1 0.89 0.8%
1,732.90 1,603.38
Total 14,951.64 14,660.28
ASSETS
Noo-cureent asscts
Property, plant and equipment and [ntangible Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 12 12,708.57 12,804.48
Intangibles assets 13 1,164.13 1,451.28
Capital work-in-progress 14 3298 148
Deferred tax assets (net) 15 - -
Investments 16 0.19 -
Long-term loans and advances 17 2232 10.64
Other non-¢urrent assets L8 290.07 159.03
14,213.26 14,426.91
Current assets
[nventaries 19 58.07 51.90
Trade receivables 20 67.14 2549
Cash and bank balances 21 516,78 86.60
Short-term loans and advances 22 60.69 60.04
Other current, assets 23 30.70 9.34
733.38 23337
Total 14.951.64 14.660.28
Significant accounting policies 2
The nates refierred to above form an integral part of the financial statements. 145

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountams
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

JH-oh e
Jaymin Sheﬂlf

Partrer
Membership Number; 114583

Place; Mombai
Diate: 28 September 2022

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Schloss Bangajdre Private Limited
CIN: U5320901L.2019PTC347492

sInBgr Ravi Shankar
Director Director
DIN; 07967035 DIN: 07967039
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 Seprember 2022 : ptember 2022
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the year coded 31 March 2022

{Rupees in millions)

For the year ended  For the year ended 31
Particulars Note 31 March 2022 March 2021
Revenue from operations 24 1,145.98 464.03
Orther income 25 .39 22.82
Total Income 117737 486.85
Expenses
Consumplion of food and baverages 26 110,29 61.01
Employee benefiis expense 27 287.07 274.60
Finance costs 28 1,228.54 855,18
Depreciation and amortisation expense 20 468.32 489.9¢
Other expenses a0 621.86 430,72
Total cxpenses 271708 11147
Lass before lax {1,539.71) (1,624.62)
Tax expense
- Current tax - -
= Deferred tax charge / (credit) - -
Loss after tax 11.539.71) {1.624.62)
Earning per equity share {(in rupees} 34
Basic earnings per share (Face value Rs.10 each} {76.53) (235.15)
Diluted earmings per share (Face value Rs.1Q cach) {T6.53) {235.15)
Significant accounting policies 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements 145

As per our report of even date attached

For BS5R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the beard of directors of
Chartered Accountunis Schloss Bangaloge Private Limited
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 CIN; US5208D)2019PTC347492

J-H St

Jaymin Sheth
Partner
tembership Number: 114583

G: Qloda

Ravi Shankar
Lhrector

DIN: 07967035 DIN: 07967039

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 September 2022

Phace: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 September 2022 Date: 28 Seprember 2022




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED

Cash flow seatement Tor the year ended 31 March 2022

{Ruapees i millions}
Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2022 March 2021
Cash flows from opersting acdivities
Laoss before tax for the year [1,539.T1} (1,624.61}
Adfastrents for:
Drepreciation and ameormization 468,32 48996
Finance costs 1,2128.55 85517
Property, plant and cquipment writlen off - 0.0%
Profit on sale of propery, planl and cquipment {net) 14.23) 10,03}
Renl equalisation reserve 4034 %015
Lease aqualisation income - 0,40
Provision o langer required woitten back - (162}
Compensated absences writion back (037 (8.43)
[nteresy income (7.38) fL.64)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 185,50 {246.55)
‘Working capilal movements:
Decreasef|Increase} in loans and advances (3. 1% 130.36
Decreasef{Increazel n inventories {617 5.4
Decreasef{Increase) in rade receivables {41.6%} .34
{Increase} in other assews (21.46) 2.04)
{Decrease) in rade payables (@777} (31.55)
(Dx il in other liabiliti 23.1h 256.64
{De W1 in provisions {7.20% b.60
Cash gemeraled from operations 33,69 126.33
Inconw: laxes paid, net (L5, 75) (1.09)
Mel cush flows generated from operating activities (A} 17,94 11524
Cash Mows from investing activities
Payinents for propeuty, pland and equipments mcluding capital work in progress (1,400.55) {3,588.70}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 425 -
Invesmmen in Nised deposils (65.45) {75400
[ruerest received 143 1.57
Purchase ol non-current mvesaments {0.18) -
MNet cash Tlows wsed in imvesting activities (B) 11454901 (3.662.13)
Cash fMows Mrom financing activilies
Praceeds from long-temm bomrowings 2,054.07 1,938,96
Repayment of long-term bomrowings 311.46) k2 A%
Proceeds fram i of compulsery convertible deb - 1007715
Proceeds from issusnce of equity shares including securilies prenziuin 19,64 1,538.90
Loans and advances laken, net 21,94 96.00
Finance casts paid {Refir note SA{1)) 11005031 {851.07)
Met cagh Mlows generated from financing aclivities () 1,929.16 3.476.37
Nel {decrease)fincrense in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 492.13 60.52)
Cash and cash equivalens as al beginning of the year 11,60 7211
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 503.78 11.60
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand L] 053
Balance with banks
-in current aceount 143.04 10.77
-in fixed deposit aceourn with origingl maturity of bess than 3 moaths 360.00 -
Total cosh and cash equivalents (Refer note 21} 503.78 11.60
The cash flow has been prepared in d with "Indirect Methud" as sel oul on Accounting Standard -3 on "Cash Flow S * referred 1o in Companies Acl. 2013

The nates referred to gbove form an imegpral pan of the Bnaneiyl stalements

As per our report of ¢ven date auached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behglf of (he board of directors of
Chariered Accourtamis Schloss Bangglore Privade Limited
Fum Repistration No- | 0] 248WW-| 00070 L2019PTCI4M452

g™ '5%

Ravi Shankar

Jaymin Sheth Anuraagiih

Parter Direvror Dircetar
tembership Number: 114533 DIN: 07967035 DM 07967039
Place Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date; 28 Sepiember 2022 Dale: 18 Seprember 2022 Drare: 28 September 2022




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

1

21

2.2

2.3

24

25

~ the actual rate at the date of the lmnsaclw

Company information

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited (“the Company™) an Indian subsidiary of Project Ballet Bangatore Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited was
incerporated on 20 March 2019 under the provisiens of Companies Act, 2013 and started its operations effective 17 October 2019 by acquiring
Bangalore hotel undertaking of HLV Limited. The Compary is in the hospitality industry and operates hotel under the brand name of "THE
LEELA".

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied censistently to the periods presented in these financial statementis

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in compliance with the requirements under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act™), read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts} Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standard Amendment Rules, 2016) and other
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles {"GAAP™) in India, under the histetical cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting, The
financizl statements are prepared in Indian rupess m millions

Going Contern

The Cotnpany has incurred a loss of Rs 1539.71 millions during the year ended 31 March 2022, has accumulated losses of Rs 3636 94 millions
and negative net worth of Rs.1743 31 millions a1 31 March 2022 and as of that date, the Company’s current liabilitics exceeded its current
assets by Rs. 1006.52 millions

During the first three months of the year, the Company wimessed softer revenues dug to the second wave of COVID-19 and consequent
lockdowns in several states across the country. Also there was a third wave in the month of January 2022, resulting in restrictions in some
states, which also adversely impacted the revenues This year the Company has seen quite an improvement in business over the previous year,
as this year the Company had lesser impact of COVID-19 with Jesser restrictions

During the year, the Company has obiained working capital Joan from a Bank which has resulted in increase in cash balance as a1 31 March
2032,

Based on these inibiatives undertaken by the Company, there is adequate cash balance to meet its obligations

The Company has assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on its capilal and financial resources, profitability and overall liguidity position. In
developing the assumptions and estimates relating to the future uncertaintics in the economic conditions because of this pandemie. the
Company as a1 the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information and based on currem
estimates, expects to recover the carrving amounts of assets. The impact of Covid- 19 may be different from that estimated as at the date of
approval of these financial statements. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future econamic conditions as
the COVID-19 situation continues 10 evolve

tn view of the above. the Company believes that it will be able to meet all its contractual obligations and liabilities as and when they fall due in
near future and accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with GAAP in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenve and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial
statements The estimales and assumptions used in the accompanying financial stalements are based upon management's evaluation of the
relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of financial statements which in management's opinion are prudent and reasonable. Actual
results may differ from the estimates used in preparing the accompaying financial statements. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognised prospectively in current and future periods

Current / Non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current

Asseis

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
Curcent assets include the current pertion of non-current assets

All other assets are classified as non-current

Liabilities

A hiability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the fellowing criteria;
Current liabifities include current portion of non-current liabilities

All other liabilities are classified as non-current

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents

Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation m cash and cash equivalents,
the Company has ascertained its aperating cycle as | 2 months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities
Foereign exchange translation

Initial recognition
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction or that approximates




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

2.6

2.7

28

29

2.1¢

Conversion
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms

of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items
which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denommated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed
when the values were determined

Exchange difference

Exchange differences arising on the settlement or on reporting of monetary items of Company at rates different from those at which they were
initially recognized are recorded as income or expense in the year in which they arise

Cash Mow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method. whereby profi / (loss) before tax for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-

cash nature and any deferrals or aceruals of past or future cash receipis or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises of cash in hand and demand deposits with banks cash equivalents are short-term balances {with an original maturity of three

months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liguid invesmments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject 10 insignificant risk of changes in value

Earnings per share

The basic and dilutive eamings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable 1o the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding dursing the reporting period. The number of shares used in
computing diluted eamings per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the
weighted average number of shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, unless the results
would be anti-dilutive

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the service, provided pervasive evidence of an arrangemem exists, tanff / rates are fixed or are
determinable and collectability is reasonably certain. Revenue comprises sale of ooms, food and beverages and allied services relating to hotel
operations, including management and operating fees. Rebates and discounts granted to customers are reduced from revenue

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking inte account amount outstanding and interest rate applicable

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right 10 receive payment is established by the reporting date

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (tangible assets) are carried at cost of acquisition or construction less accamulated depreciation and impairment
loss, it any. The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties
and other taxes {cther than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any direetly attributable expenditure on making the asset
ready for its intended use. other incidental expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property, plant and
equipiment upto the date the asset is ready for its intended use

Capital work-in-progeess comprises of the cost of property, plant and equipment thai are not vet ready for their intended use at the balance sheet
date.

Depreciation on fangible property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in
Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of buildings, plant and machinery and furniture and fixtures, in whose case the life of
the assets had been re.assessed as under based on technical evaluation, taking imio the account the pature of the asset, the estimated usage of
the asset, aspects such as modifications effected since acquisition, the present condition of the existing assets and level of mamtenance

Depreciation is provided on a pro-raia basis i.e from the date on which assets is ready for use. Depreciation on sale of asset is provided up 1o
the date of sale of the asset

Based on the above, the estimated useful lives of the property. plant and equipment are as follows:

Category of assets Useful life as per Schedule 1 (in years) | Useful life as per Technical Assessment (in years)
Buildings 60 years 60 years
Plant and machinery 15 years 10 vears to 15 years
Plant and machinery - Windmil} 25 years 25 years
Furniture and fixtores 8§ years 8 years
Office equipments 5 years Not Applicable
Computers 3 years Not Applicable
Drata processing units & years Not Applicable
-|¥ehicles & vears Mot Applicable

o,

; ‘lr{-tgspéht of leasehold land acquired. anv consideration paid is amortised from the date the land is put to use for commercial operations, aver

the talance period of the Ieasc/z/




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

A propenty, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal er when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains
or losses frem disposal / retirement of an tangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss

2.11 Intangible assets
[ntangible assets are carmied at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and impairment Joss, if any. [ntangible assets are amortized on

a siraight-line basis over the period in which economic benefits will be derived from their use. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method are reviewed atleast each financial year end. I the expected useful life of the assel is significantly different from previous estimates, the
amontisation period is changed accordingly

Based on the above, the estimated useful lives of the intangible nssets are as follows:

Category of assets Useful life (in years}
Computer software & years
Right to use (Car park space) 60 years
Goodwill 3 years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future econemic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains e losses from
disposal / retirement of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the nel disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the

assef and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss

2,12 Impairment of assels

In accordance with AS 28 on 'Impairment of assets, the Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimaies the recoverable amount of the asse1. The recoverable amount is the
greater of the net selling price and value in use. Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected 1o arise from the
continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value based on apprepriate discount factor. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the
cash generating unit 10 which the asset belongs is kess than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profil and loss

If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss ne longer exists, the recoverable amount is
reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to maximum of depreciable historical cost

2.13 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current 1ax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the income-1ax law) and deferred
tax charge or credit {reflecting the tax effects of timing differences behween accounting income and taxable income for the period)

Current tax
Provision for current tax is recopnized based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances and exemptions in
accordance with the tax laws applicable to the Company

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income i ¢, differences thal originate in one

period and are capable of reversal in the subsequent periods. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or
assets are recognized using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheel date. Deferred tax
assets are recognized only 10 the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in futare, however. where there is
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward loss under taxation laws, deferred 1ax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supporied

by convincing evidence that the sufficient future 1axable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Current tax assets and current tax habilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounis and there is an
intention to settle the asset and the ltability on a nel basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws

Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually
certain {as the case may be) to be realized.

2.14 Investments
Investments that are readily realisable and are intended 1o be held for not more than one year from the date, on which such investments are
made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long term investments. Current investments are cartied al
cost or fair value, whichever is lower. Long-term investments are carried at cost. However. provision for diminwtion is made to recognise a
decline, other than temporary, in the value of the investments, such reduction being determined and made for each investment individually.

2.15 Employee benefits

Short-term bencefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as shori-term employee benefits. These
benéfits include salary, wages and bonus, short term compensated absences such as paid annual leave and sickness leave. The undiscounted
amount of short-term emplovee benefits (including compensated absences) expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by,
employees is recognized as an expense during the period of rendering of service by the cmplo‘\-e;:? ‘A_DHE




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 {Continued)

2.1%

a Ii'a!iiliry has been meurred, and the amount can be estimated reliably if

Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company’s contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are
recognized as an ¢xpense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions

Defined benefit plans

(Post-employment benefit)

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s ne1 obligation in respect of the grawity benefit scheme 13 calculated
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value

The present valug of the obligation under such defined benefit pian is determined based on acwarial valuation by an independent actwary using
the Projectad Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise 1o additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measures each unil separately to build up the final obligation

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of
the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yields on government securities as ai the balance sheel date. When the
calcuiation resuits in a benefit to the Company. the recognised asset is limited 1o the net totel of any unrecognised actuarial losses and past
service costs and the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. Actuarial gains and
lozses are recognized immediately in the statement of profil and loss

Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and wtilise it in future service periods or received
cash compensation on termination of employment The Company records abligation for compensated absences in the period in which the
employee renders services that increase this entitlemem. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuartal valuation.

Inventorics
Stock of food and beverages and stores and operating supplies are carried at the lower of cost (computed on a weighted average basis) or net

realisable value. Cost mcludes the fair valve of consideration paid including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), inward freight and
other expenditure direcily atiributable to the purchase. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in determining the cost of purchase

Investments
Investments which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date on which soch investments are made

are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investmenis
Investments held by the Company which are long tenn in nature are stated at cost unless thers is any permanent diminution in value where

provision for diminution 15 made on individual investment basis. Current investments are valued at cost or market price or fair value,
whichever is Jower. Earnings on investments are accounted for on accrual basis

Leases
Leases are classified a$ finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnership to the lessee

Lease arrangements, where the risks and rewards incidemal to ownership of an asset substantially vests with the lessor, are recognised as
operating leases

Finance leases. which effectively transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are
capitalised at the inception of ihe lease term at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and present value of minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. Lease management
fees, legal charpes and other initial direct costs of lease are capitalised

Lease payments under operating lease are recogmsed as an expense in the slatement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term except where another systematic basis is more representative of time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are
consumed.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable

that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure
Tequired 1o settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. The provisions are measured on an undiscounted basis
Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, ete. are recognised when it is probable that

a liability has been incurred, and the amount can be estimated reliably

Cantingencies:
Prgvision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims. litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, ete. are recognised when it is probable that
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A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require
an eutflow of resources, or 4 present obligation whose amount cannot be estimatad reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but
are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continuously and if
it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the
change oceurs.

2.20 Segment Reporting
The Company has considered business segments as the primary segments for disclosure on the basis that the risk and returns of the Company is

primarily determined by the nature of services

Revenues and expenses have been identified to the segment based on their relationship to the business activity of the segment
Income/Expenses relating to the enterprise as a whole and not allocable on a reasonable basis to business segments are reflected as unallocated
CoTporate income/expenses, [nter-segment transfers are al prices which are generally market IW
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(Rupees in willions)

3 Share capital
) As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Authorised
67,500,000 (Previous year: 67.500.000) equity shares of Rs 10 each 675,00 675,00
675.00 675.00
Issued, subscribed and paid up
20,169,566 (Previous year: 19.373,216) equity shares of Rs. 10 each. fully paid up 201,70 193.73
201.70 193.713
a) Reconciliation of number of shares and at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
(Rupees im millions)
” As at 31 March 2022 Az at 31 March 2021
Particulars
Mo, of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 1,93,73,21¢ 193.73 47,560,000 47.60
Shares issued during the year 1,96,350 7.96 1,46,13,216 146.12
Al the end of the vear 2,01,69,566 200,70 1,93,73,216 193.73

b) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to equily shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, 2l equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares
are entitled 1o receive dividend as declared froin time to time. The voting rights of an equity shereholder on a poll (not show of hands} are in proportion to its share of the paid-up

equity capilal of the Company,
On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled 10 receive the residual assets of the Company

¢y Shares held by holding company / ultimate holding company
(Rupees in millions)
. As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 1021
Particulars
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid-up
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvi. Limited, bolding company 2,01.69.565 i) Bl - -
BSREP 111 India Baller Holdings (DIFC} Limited, ultimate holding company 1 0.00 = -
BSREP 111 India Balled 111 Pre. Lid., holding company - - 1,93,73,215 193,73
BSREP 111 [ndia Ballet Pre. Lid., ulimate holding company - - 1 0.0
2,01,69.566 200.70 1,93,73.216 193.73

d} Details of shares held by shareholders bolding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Pabticilars As at 31 March 2022 As ar 31 March 2021
Aar
: No. of shares %o of Holding| No. of shares % of Holding

Equity shbares of Rs, 10 cach fully paid-up
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Privane Linuited 2.03,69,565 99.99% -

BSREP 111 India Ballet 1l Pte. Lid, - - 1,93,73,215 99.99%
2,01,69,565 99.99% 1,93.73,215 99.99%

€) Company has not issued any bonus shares. shares for consideration other than cash and neithier bought back any shares from the daie of incorporation

f Disclosure of Sharcholding of Promoters

Equity shares of Rs. 19 each fully paid-up As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021 Change in % of

Promaters No. of shares % of Holding MNo. of shares %o of Holding| Holding

Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings {DIFC) Private Limited 2.01.69.565 99.99% - 2.00% 99.99%

BSREP I1] India Ballet Holdings (DIFC}) Limited 1 0.00% - 2.00% 0.00%
2,01,69.566 99.99% - 0.00% 99.99%




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes 1o the fmancidl stadements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

]

(a

ib;

ic

1LH

(¢

Reserves amd surplus
‘Rupees in mitfiory

3 As al Asal
Particuiars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secorilies prendum acconnt:

At lhe commencement of tlve year 1,620.27 42750

Add; Premium on shares issued during the year TI.67 119237

Al the end of the year 1.691.94 1.620,27
Retamed earnings:

At the commencement of Lhe year {24197.24) {472.63)

Add Loss for the year {1,539.71) (L62461)

At the emd of the year {3.636.94) (2,097.24)
Todal (0.945.00) (476.97)
Long-term borrowings

{Rupees in millions)

. Asal As al
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Secured:

Tarm boans:
- From banks
Rupes tenm loan (Refer note A and Cp 11,169.54 11.436,93
Less : Amount disclosed under shon tem borrowines | Refer note A{d) below) (54,20 [4.75)
1111534 1143218
Working captal term loan (Refer note B) 100000 -
Less ; Amoun digclosed under shon term bomow ings |Refer note Bic) below} {L8.56) -
109144 -
Unsecared:
10 0% unsecured pulsoriby ible deb {Refer note D) L5025 150275
Long-term maturities of finance lease obligation (Refer nate E) - .58
1,502,715 1.504.33
Total 14,599.53 11.956.50
Notes:

Term loan [rom Bank 1

The lender has granted a term loan tacility under the Commion Facility Agreement dated 30 September 2019 10 the Company and thres co-borrawers i ¢ Schloss Chennai Private Limived.
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited, Sehloss Udaipur Private Limited, For a tow ] amounung to Rs 27,500 00 milliens for the purpose of acquisition and refurbishment of the hotel property
acquired by each of the three co- bormrowers and the Company's hotl property in Bangalore. The daar 10 door 1enure af the loan is 15 years ineluding moratorivm of one year The lozn is
repayabile in 56 quanerly siructured installments beginning 3) December 2020 The loan carmies inlerest raie lmked lo lender’s one year marginal cost of funds based lending rats
{“MCLR"). subyect to annual reser, plus spread ranging from 0 30% (o 1 60% based oa the extemal credn rating The Company has available Faclity of Bs 560 millions (Previons Year:
Rs 960 million (includs undsasm amount of Rs 804 millions (Previous Year §58 millions)s and cate of mierest as on 31 March 2022 is 780 % pa {Previous year 780 % pa}
Primary security:

The 1ot2] 1erm boan under the said agreement 15 secured against assets of the Company, other co-borrawers and obligators i ¢ Schloss HMA Privaie Limited and Letts Palaces and Resorts
Limited under the Common Facility Ag i I, including:

i Exclusive charpe on the tolal assets {including morigage of property and / or morigage of leasshold rights in case of leasehold property. if any) (present & future)

it Exclusive charge on brand ' Leela” penaming 1o Holeks, other inangibles, Goodw i, Lotell | Property (IP). uncalled capital {present and furire).

i Exelusive charge on all bank accoums includmg bul neu limited w Escrow account (presem & fulure)

is. First charge on the 19tal cutrem assets {present and future)

v. Hypmhecation of cash lows

Lomg-teem borrowings (Continned }
Motes (Conlinued):
Term loan from Bank [Contioued})

Corporale goaraniee:
i} of Schloss HMA Private Limited, a fellow subsidiary
ii) of Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited, a Fellow subsidiany

Other security:

i) Pledge of 30% shares of the Company held by the Project Ballet Banzalore Holdings {DIFC) Pvi. Limited. Holding eompany, in favour of secunity thusiee f9e the benefit of lenders for
the entire 1em lpan exposure

ii) A guarantee of BSREP I Indiz Ballet Pre Limited, uliimats Holdng company., situated at Singapore upio an amount of Rs 3,000 milliens. enforceable al Singapore towards mesung
the shorall in debt service obligations il 3¢ March 2022

in} A guaantee of BSREP 1)) India Baller Holdings {DIFC) Limited , uhimate Holding company. situated at Dubai upto an amount of Rs 3.000 millions. enforceable at Dubar wwards
meeting the shortfall in debd service obligations fmom 31 March 2022

iv} Monigage on the land sitwated au Apra owned by Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited

Current ities of long-term b ines are ¢lastified as shon-term bormowings

Modification in (acility terms:
Lender on the request of the management has waived the requirement of testing of fmancial covenants till the end of FY' 2022-23 with tesuing to be performed on the audited balance sheet
as al 31 March 2024 onwards

Morasorimm on inlérest:
Company has wvaded ihe moratorium Facility for interest on term boan for the period March, 2020 10 August 2020 which has been further capialised inlo tenn loan w e f 01 Qoiobsr 2020

amounting Rs. 423 62 millens | Previous vear 364 54 mil




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to the Fnancial siatements for ke year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

(a)

(b

—

i«

{3)

(b

€

Ia

{b}

L

The lender has granted a Working capital term Loan {WCTL) Faciliry under Guaranieed Emergency Credit Line 3.0 (GECL 3.0) facility of Rs 2000 millions {Previous Year. Nil) on 24

December, 2021 to the Company 10 augemenn ned working capital, requi 1o meel gperational liabilities The door o door lenure of the loan is & years meluding meratonum of
prmcipal of two years The loan is repayable in 48 quartedy d install beninning O ber 2023 The loan carries inlerest rate Tinked 1o lender's six months marginal cost of
funds besed lending rate ("MCLR"™). plus 1%, subject to anmual reset

Primary security;

Second charge on securities menhioned in A | {a} above

Other security:

i) Pledge of 30% shares of the Company held by the Praject Baller Bangalore Holdings (DAFC) vt Limited, Holding company. in favour of securify musiee for the benef of lenders for
the enlire 1erm |oan exposurs

ii) Extension of mortgage on the land situated aL Agra owned by Leela Palaces and Resons Limited

Current maturities of long-term borrowings are classified as short term borowings

Term loas Il

The lender had availed a 1em loan facility under Leass Rental Discounting (LRD} facility under the Masier Facility Apreemem dated 17 March 2021 1o the Company, amounting to Rs

1,400 00 pllions for the purpose of acqulsmon of the Galleriz office in Bangalore The door 1o door tenurs of the loan was 12 year including moratorium of one year The boan was
repayable in 132 monthly ] begmning March 2022 The loan carried interest rate linked to Original Lenders’ Lenders Benchmark Rate with nepative Spread of |30
bps per annum The rate during the year was 7.95% ( Previous year § 50%)

During the year. the said faciliny was rel'mamed from SB1 For amount of Rs 1100 rillions The door 1o door lenure of the loan is 15 vears from the date of firs) disbursement The loan's
repayable tenure i 130 monthly d Il beginning D ber 2021 The loan camies inlerest rate linked to lender's one year marginal cost of funds based lending rale
("MCLR"). subject 1o menthly and annual reset, plus spread of ¢ '.I'S% The e of interest as on March 31, 202215 7 75% pa

Primarvy Securiry:
Exclusive first charge on hypothecstion of exisung and luture rent receivables including lease rentals, parking rental, maintenance receivables and any other receivables from existing
tenaniz of the commercial building named "Galleria" from 13t floor 1o Tih floor, located 1 Sy, no 54, 95, 96 HAL Swage - 1. W airport raad, Kodihalli village, Vanho Hobh, now part

of municipal ne 2344, PID no. 74-49-23:4, situated at Kodihalli main road. 6th cross, Bangalore admeasuring 15.203 98 5q f

Collatera) Security:

{a} Exclusive first charge on the commencial banlding named "Galleria” from |5 oor 1o T floor, located at Sy, no 84, 95, 56, HAL Suage - I, Old airport road, Kodihalli village, Varthur
Hobli, now part of municipal no. 23/4, PIO no 74-49-2344, situated at Kodihalli main road. 6th cross, Bangalere admeasuring 15203 93 5q ft slong with underlying land admeasuring
24,904 sqmtrs

{1} Assignrment (by way of securiry inlerest) the right 1o uge 305 car parking space

{c) Exclusive charge a5 Lien on 3 months DERA

(d} Ex¢lusive charge on Escrow account

Current malurities of long-term barrowings are ¢lassified as short e borrowings

10.50% d pulsori ibbe deb es

Conversiom terms:

At the end of the venure {15 years), each Compulsorily C ible Deb ["CCD*) of Face value of Ry 100 sach will be converted into 1 equity share of face value of Rs 10 each
CCD can be convened during the enure of CCD at the option of the parties | & CCD holders and the Company. Provided that the CCDs shall awomatically stand converted into equity
shares upon

{a} € of the cory insolvency Jution process of the Company or, any of the ca-barrowers under the Commaa Facility Agr dated 30 Seplember 2015 d

with the lender; or

{b) Conversion of ioan into equiry of e Comparty or any or all of the co-borrowers under the Commeon Facility Agreement, unkess otherwise instructed by the lender as per the Common
Facility Agreement who have provided the loans or who may have acceded (o the financing documents

Restriction on payment of interest on CCDs:

Az per temme of the Common Facility Agresment referred an clanse S{A} above, interest an the CCDs shall be due but cannat be paid by the Company until all the cbligations under
Common Facility Agresment are completed or seized

Long-term malurites of finance lease obligation
Finance lease abliganon s on account of Plant and Machinery (Chiller) taken on finance lease for a period of 3 years which will end on August 2022 Repayments are done by equated
menthly installments over 36 months

Otber Jong-term Esbilities
(Rupees in mitlions)

. As al As af
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Trade / securiry deposis 7135 9630
Rent equalisation reserve 11240 1206
Tmierest acerued but ot due CCD (Refer note 3Bi(b) and 28) 13847 -

32752 168.36
Long-term provisions
Pavticul As at As at
Avticulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Provision for employee benefits:
- Compensated absences 302 A L
- Gratuity { Refer note 36) 24.68 2811
7,70 3527
Shori-term borrowimgs

. As ot As al
Farticulars 31 March 2032 31 March 2021
Kecured
Warking capial loan (Refer nole A) 12039 EEA R

Unsecured
Tivter. wrpmuto dcpml! from relawd parry {Refer Note By and {Refer note 35) 520794 96,00
Current : of long-ts gs |Refer note SA[d) and 5B{c)) 72.76 4,75

1.411,08




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
MNotes ta the financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2022 {Coatinued)

{A)

(2}

{b

<€)

153

Noles:

Working capital loan

The lender has granted a working capital facility 2z per Agreement dated 11 August 2020 10 the Conpany and three co-barrowers i e Schloss Chennal Private Limited, S¢hloss Chanakya
Private Limited, Schloss Udaipur Private Limited, for 4 wisl amounting to Rs 500 00 millions (Previous Year 1000 00 millions) 10 meer the warking capital requirement and i is
repayable on dermand The loan carties interest rate linked 1o lender's one year marginal cost of lurds based lending rate ("MCLR"). subject 10 monthly reset. The rale af interest a3 on 31
Warch 2022 is 795 % pa (Previovs year 793 % pa)

Primary yecurity:

Exclusive firs charge on the entire cument assets (Brasent and Funre) of the Borrower and Schioss HMA Private Limiled (hote] management entityl

Collnteral security:

{11 Extension of exclusive charge on the entire lixed assets (inchidi wtzage of properry andior of lease hold rights in case of lease hold property. if any) of the bomuwer

{ii} Extension of extlusive charge on all cash flows of the borrower and Schloss HMA Prvare Limited (hotel management emiity}, relaved 10 profect {including but nol limited 10 ESCROW
account and Debt Service Reserve Accounts) opencdto be opened with lender

(i) Exlension of morigage on the land sitvated ai Agra owned by Leela Palaces and Resonts Limired

{iv) Extension of exclusive charge on brand Leels, cther intangibles, goodwill, IF relating to the 4 SPY's owned by Schlogss HMA Private Limited

(v} Extension of pledge of 30% sharss of (i} Schloss Chanakya Private Limited held by BSREF 11 Indwa Ballet L Pie Ltd i} Schloss Udaipur Private Limited held by Progect Baller
Udaipur Holdings {DIFC) Pvt Limited {10} Schloss Bangalore Privite Limited held by Project Ballet Bangalore Holdwes {DIFC) Pyt Linnited {iv} Schloss Chennal Privale Limited
Project Balles Chennai Holdings (DIFC) Pvi Limited in favour of the lender for the entire exposure (TL+WC)

Corporate guaraniee:

i} of Schloss HMA Private Limied, a fellow subsidiary

W) of Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited, a fellow subsidimry

Gii) A guarantee of BSREP 11l India Ballet Pie Limited, uhtimate Holding company, situated at Singapore upto an amount of Rs 3.000 rllions, enforceable at Singapore towards medtng
the shorifall in debr service obligations till 30 March 2022

) BSREP IIT India Baller Holdings [DIFC) Limited (Ultimate Holding Company) o fhe exient of Rz 3,000 00 millions w mest any shonfall in debt servicing obligation of the
B 1 shall be ded 1o the propased loan from 31 March 2022

Imier corporate deposit (ICDH from related party
Inter corporate deposit aken from Schloss Udaipur Private Limited, Schloss Chennai Private Limited, Schloss Chanakya Private Limited & Schloss HMA Private Lunited and carries

imerest rate of 12 5% pa 1CD is repayable on demand

Trade payables
iRupees in nrillions)
Partic As at Asan
articulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
- Tolal cwstanding dJues of nhcre enterprises and small enterprises (Refer nots belaw) 2108 2262
- Tolal cutsiznding dues of creditors oiher than micro entemprises and small enterprises
- Related parties {Refer note 35) 1199 25.51
- Others 208 104.51
10516 15254
Trade payables (Continued}
Mote:
Dues of mécro enterprises and sniall enterprises
(Rupees in nillfons)
Particula Asal Asal
= e 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSRED Act and remaining unpaid as at .08 22462
year end
Interest due 1o suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid a5 a1 year end 0.00 04
Principal paid to supph Ik d under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day Lo 1.99
during the vear
Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Acy o suppliers registered under the - -
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day durning the year
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act to suppliers regisiered under the MSMED Act - -
bevond the appointed day during the year
Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for paymenis already 0.01 0.04
made
Further mterest remaining due and pavable for earlicr vears - -

The munagement has dentified enterprises which have provided goods and services (o the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enteqprises a5 defined under

MSMED Acl‘q




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

9 Trade payables {Continued)

As at 31-03-2022
QOutstanding for following periods from date of transaction
Particulars Accrued 2-3 More than 3 Total
Less than 1 year I-2years
cxXpenses years Vears
(i} MSME - 21.08 - - - 21.08
(ity Others 10.46 73.41 020 - - 84.07
(iit) Dispuied dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv} Disputed dues - Cthers - - - - = =
Total 10.46 94.49 0.2¢ - - 10515

As at 31-03-2021

Qutstanding for following periods from date of transaction

Particulars Accruoed 2-3 More than 3 Total
Less than 1 year 12 years
expenses years vears
(1) MSME - 22.62 - - - 2262
{ii} Others 3163 9797 0.72 - - 130.32
(iii) Diisputed dues - MSME - . - = - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others = - - - - -

Total 31.63 120.59 0.72 -




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Nimancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

10 Other corrent abilities

Asat As at

Particalars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
To related parties (Refer Note 35)
Interest acerued and due on inler corporate deposit 1.23 410
Settlement in relation with business acquisition - 6845
Other than related parties
Currenl matorities of finance lease obligation L97 4.58
Interest aecrued but net due on berrgwings 832 -
Advance from customers 5336 4152
Erployes dues pavable 28.73 1004
Sewatutory dues payable
- Tax deducted at source and equalisation levy 26.76 40.17
= Provident fund 130 1.94
- Profession ax .06 086
= Employess siale insurance LA 1] LN F)
Trade / seamity deposits 19.27 1.50
Capital creditors 1.08 1.258,94
2&73 1.461.68
11 Short-term provisions
{Rupees In miltions)

: As at As al
g 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Provisien for employee bemefits:

- Compensated absences .3 135
= Ciratuity (Refer note 36) 0.58 0.54
0,89 .89
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SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 Mavch 2022 {Continwed}

15

Deferred 1ax assets inet)
(Rupees in willions)

; As al Ag al
Ll 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
The comp of delerred tax bal are as Tollows:

{A} Deferred rax assets
Arising on acconny af tinving differences in:
Provision for employes benefits - 10.47
Dizallowance ufs 438 of the Income-tax Act, 1961 11145 116.52
Unabsorbed depreciation / business loss {Refer note below) 138.09 48.41
209.54 1539
(B} Deferred e fiabitiy
Arising on accomy of ming differences in:
Provision for employee benefits 387 -
Excess of depraciation / i on property. plant and equip under incoms Lax 295.67 21539
laws over depreciation isati ided in the books
20954 215.32
Deferred tax assets {net) - {A|-(B} = a
Note
Deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent of deferred tax liabilities, as this amount is considered 1o be vintually certain of realization The ining defermed tax assels of Rs
701 66 millions on accounl of unabsorbed depreciation and business losses are pot ised, as they are nol considered to be wirtually ceram of realizahon

Nom-carren! myvesiments
{Rupees in raiflions}

Particul Asat As al

Arneen 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Other investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

Investment im eqoaty mstrumends (unquoted)

18,600 (31 March 2021 Nil) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up in Green Infra Wind Power Generation Limited 019 -
.12 -

Appregale amounl of quoted investments - ?

Apgresate amount of unquoled investments 0.19 -

Aggregate provision for diminution in value of i - -

Long term loams and advances

(Rupees in millions)

. As at As al
Particulars 31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
Unzecwred, considered good:

Capital advances .69 4.7%
Advance 1oy and tax deducied at source (et of provisions} 11.63

5.83
1132 10.64 /J




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
MNodes to the Tinancial staterments Tor the year ended 31 March 2022 (Coatinued)

18  Other nan-curremt asseis
(Rupaes in millionz)

. As at As al
Particatars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Prepaid expenses JAa0 4.55
Margin money depasits with ariginal manriry of more than 12 months 038 005
Fised deposit account with original matucity of more than {2 months 12712 -
Security deposits 150.17 154.43

9007 X
19 Imventories
(A fower af cost and ner veafisable vahie}
{Rupees in mitlions}

N Asat Asat
Fartieutars 31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
Food and beverages 19.90 21,15
Stores and operatng supphes 38,17 30,75

S8.07 L9
20 Trade receivables
(Rugrecs i millions

. Asal As al
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Receivabl dimg for a period ding six months from ke date thay were due for
paymeni:

- Unsecured, considered good .51 12.14
= [Insecured, considered doubtful - -
351 014
Less: Provision for doubtful receivab) : =
3.51 .14
(nher receivables:

- Unsecyred, considersd good




SCHLOSS BANGALORE FRIVATE LIMITED
Motes 4a {he financial statements (o7 tive year ended 31 March 2022 (Costinuedh

20 Trade receivables {Continued)

As o 31-03-2072
Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction
Particulars Lessthané  $momths-1 | ” More than Total
-2 years 2. dyears
maonths year s A vears
(i) Undeputed Trade Receivabl pdered pood 6563 i - - - $7T 4
(i) Undispuled Trade Receiyables — considered doubtful - - - - N N
(in} Dispied Trade recznables - considercd pood - - - - - -
() Disputed Trade receir ables — considered doublful - - - . - -
Less: provision for doubiful debls . E C B - .
Toaal 6!_63 3.51 - - - 6714
As al 31-03-2021
Crutstanding for following periods from date of transietion
Partirulars Less than £ 6 swonths - 1 3 1 Mere than Total
months vear LSS years -3years 3years
i) Uinchispiated Tradke Reeewvables - considered good 2538 ol - F: A 2549
(i) Undisputcd Trade Receivabl idered doubtful - - . S = %
{1} Disputed Trade recein ables - considersd pood - - » - . .
{+) Disputed Trade recen ables — tonsidered doubtiul - E . - & L

Less: provision For doobuful debis =
Total




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial stalements for the yesr ended 31 March 2022 (Contimued)

21 Cash awd bank balances
{Rupees in miflions)

N Ag at As at
Farticulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cash and cosh equitaleyc:

Cash on hand 74 L5 o]
Balapce with tinks
- i curTent accounts 143,04 10.7T
- in fined deposit accounl with original matunity of Jess than 3 monthe. 360.00 -
Other bank balamces
- in depasit acoounts with original maturity of more than 3 momhs but bess than 12 momths 13.00 15.00
51678 8660
22 Short-term loans and advamces
5 ire st
As at Asal
Partielars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured, congsidered good:
Security deposis 5.23 3,65
Advance 1o suppliers £14 .78
Prepard expenses 31.54 2492
Balances with government authorilies 1845 28.86
Loans and advances to employees ®23 0.29
Receivable from HLY Limied - .44
60,69 61.04
23 Other current asseds
(Ruepees im smilliont)
As at As a1
Partieuhies 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
To related parties (Reler Note 35)
Reveivable against reimk - L6

Other than velared parties
Trieres) acerued gn deposits
Unbilled revenus




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 3 March 2022 (Continued)

4

15

26

7

18

19

Revemwe from operntions

(Rupess in millions)

For the year ended 31 For ihe year ended 31
Particulars March 2022 March 2021

(a) Sale of products:
Food and beverages revenue 491.73 236,48

() Sale of services:

Raom income 396,08 172.54
Income from rental and related services 210,08 44.57
Other allied servicss {laundry income. bealih club income, airpon fers, bership eic b 48.12 10.14
654.25 227,55
1,145.98 46403

Other income

{Rupecs in millions)

For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
Pariiculars March 2022 March 2021
Tnterest inconme
- fixed deposit 6.m .46
- others 1.37 118
Provision no longer required writen back - 761
Compensated absence written back {Refer Nowe 36} 0.37 8.43
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 4258 0.03
Met gain or loss on Foreign cumrency ransaction and translation {nel) - 0.66
Mizcellanesus mcome 19.39 4,45
31.39 22.32
Consumption of food and beverapes
(Rupees in millions)
For the year emded 31 For the year ended 31
Particulars March 2022 March 2021
Inventory at the beginning of the year 2155 29.52
Add: Purchages 109,04 523
130.19 8116
Less: Inventory al the end of 1he year 19.90 21.15
110.29 61.01
Employee benefits expense
(Rupers in millions}
. For the year ended 31 For the year ¢ewded 31
Particulars March 2022 March 2021
Salaries and wages 23379 23701
Contribution 1o providem fund, employees stale insutance and labour welfare fund (Refer note 36} 12.60 11.93
Gratuity expenzes {Reler note 36} 074 3.09
Stalf welfare expenses 39.94 22.57
2587.07 274.60
Finance cosis
‘Rupees in millions]
For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
Particulars March 2022 March 2021
Interest expense on:
- Term loans 977.63 §36.78
- Working Capital Term Loan 943 1.97
- Compulsonily convenible deb (CCDs)* 157,79 S
- Inter corporate deposti 46.28 4.98
- Finance lease and Others 117 057
Other borrowing costs (lerm loan fee, processing fee and advisory fee) 524 10,88
Loan prepayment Charges 800 -
1,.228.54 5518
£ On request by the Company, the CCD holder had waived the interest till 31 March 2021
Depreciation and amortisath
{Rupess in milfions)
Far the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
Parvculars March 2022 March 2021
Dieprecialion on Property. Ptam & Equipments 150.39 131,45
Amortisation of mtangible assels 287.93 1%8.51
468,32 489.%6




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes 1o the financial statements for (ke year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

38 Other expenses

(Rupees in mifliorns}
For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
Particulars March 2022 March 2021
Consumption of stares and operang supplies 4130 3206
Power and fuel 56.94 S$6.01
Rent 128.7¢ 139.75
Bepairs and maintenance
- buildings 15.43 1237
- plant and machinery 43.14 35,49
- others 20.66 15.49
Insurance 10.49 890
Communication 348 307
Travelling and conveyance 288 1.52
Guest transpor] .50 124
Printing and stationary .18 141
Seles and credit card commission 1014 £88
Business promalion 41.92 2562
Managemen! Fees (Refer nole 35) 43.37 548
Legal and professional fees 49.36 11.72
Payment Lo auditor’s (Refer note below) 1.7¢ 1.50
Rates and taxes 86.54 £8.00
Share issue expenses - £.40
Property, plant and equipmnent written off - 0.09
Nel gain or loss on foreign currency transaction and translation 0.54 -
Bank charges 0.20 .18
Miscellansous Expenses 47.68 $.97
622.86 430,72
P; to puditor’s (excluding taxes) (Rupees in millions)
For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
Particulars March 2022 March 2021
Statutory audit 1.70 1.50
Reimbursement of expenses - -
1.70 1.50




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued}

31 Contingent liabilities and commitments

{2} Continpent liabilities {Rupees in millions)
. As at As at
Farticulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Disputed Statutary liabilities {refer note below) I8.53 35.42

38.53 35.42

Note:

The breakup of disputed statutory liabilnties is as under: (Rupees in millions)

As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2011

Department i appeals

Service rax * 41 .46
VAT # 1.12 0,96
38.53 35.42

32

*Service tax depariment has raised demand on HLV Limited vide Show Cause Notice {"SCN") on account of disallowance:

ta) of CENVAT availed on debit motes raised by Leela Lace Holding Private Limited for service tax paid on lease rental under Voluntary Compliance
Encouragement Scheme ("VCES"} introduced by Minisiry of Finance, Govenment of India to encourage payment of taxes on undisclosed meome;
{b) on aceount of classification of in-reom dining and mini ber under room accommodation (HLY Limited has paid service tax on in-room dmning and mini bar

service under restaurant category (department has considered the said services under reom accommodation category 1o levy tax) and
(¢} of abatement claimed under rent-a-cab on accouni of input availment on car washing, maintenance ¢tc

Order 1o SCN was received in favour of HLV Limited. However, in departmental query the issue was raised again and the department bas filed an appeal before

CESTAT against the order received in favour of HLV Limited

# Deputy Commissioner of Commercial taxes has raised demand vide show cause notice (SCN) on account of fellowing:
(a} Disallowance of input credit on account of non-filing of return by vendors along with inerest

{b) Dy. Comimissioner also levied penalty for delay in making paymeni of taxes

Subsequenily the tax amount of Rs. .08 million has been paid by the company. The interest and penalty amount has been waived as per govi order number FD 49

CSL 2021 dated 29 March 2021 Thus the matter has achieved closure.

{b) Commitments
Estimated amount of conhacts remaining to be executed and not provided for (net of advances) amounts te Rs Nil

Expenditure in foreign currency fon payment basis)

(Rupees in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended 31

Particulars 31 March 2022 March 2021
Other expenses (advertisement fes, commission fee, sales and marketing fee, reservation fee etc ) 24.21 21.72
24.21 21.72

33 Details of Imported and indigenous consumption (Rupees in millions)

For the vear ended 31 March 2422 For the year ended 31 March 2021
P . Amount %% of total Amount % of total
articulars consumption cONSUm ption
Imported - - - -

Indigenous 110,29 100.00% 61.01 100.00%
110.29 104.0% 61.01 100.00%

34 Earmings per share
Eamings Per Share is caleulated in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 - ‘Eamings Per Share’ - (AS-20} prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013
{Ruipees in millions excepr per share data}
For the year ended For ihe year ended 31
Particulars 31 March 2022 March 2021
Loss afier tax {1,539.71) {1,624.62)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares:
Considered in calculation of Basic EPS 2,01,18,6%0 69,08,914
Considered in calculation of Ciluted EPS 2,01,18,690 69,08,914
Face value per Equity Share {Rupees) 10 10
Eamings Per Share (Rnpees)
Basic (76.53) {235,15)
Diluted * (76.53) (235.15)

* As.iheimpact of the CCDs was anti-dilutive, resulting in a decrease in loss per share from continving ordinary activities, the effect thereof has been ignored

_ whilst :_@qulaﬁ'ﬁa{lil uled eamings per share.




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

A5 Related party disclosures
{a) Names of related parties

(iy Ultimate Holding company
BSREP 11! India Ballet Holdings { DIFC) Limited, ultimate holding company (w.e £ 30 March 2022)
BSREPF I India Ballet Pte. Led. (Till 30 March 2022)

(ii) Holding com pany
Praject Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pwi. Limited, holding companty (w.e f 30 March 2022)
BSREP 111 India Ballet 111 Pte. Lrd. (Till 30 March 2022)

(iii} Fellow subsidiaries

Schloss HMA Private Limited

Schioss Chennai Private Limited

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited

Schioss Chanakya Private Limited (Till 30 March 2022)
Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited

Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited

Tulsi Patace Reson Private Limited {w e f 3rd May 2021)

{iv) Key managerial personnel

Mr. Kunal Chauhan, General Manager (Till 16 July 2021)

Mr. Madhav Sehegal, Genera) Manager {w.¢ f 14th August 2021)
Mr. Subrat Sinha, Financial Conrroller

(v} Other related parties
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited {w.e.f 3] March 2022)

{b) Transactions during fhe year (Rupees in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended 31
Particulars 31 March 2022 March 2021

Management fees expense

Schloss HMA Private Limited 43.37 583
Reimk t of exp paid to / {received from)

Schloss Chennai Private Limited 0.13 -
Schloss HMA Private Limited 13.55 432
Sehloss Udaipur Private Limited 0.56 =
Schloss Chanakya Private Linited (014} -
Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited (0.13) -
Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited {0.23) -
Isswance of 10,50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures

BSREP [1i India Ballet [T] Pte, Ltd - 1,027.75
Issuance of right issue shares (Including securities premium)

BSREP IIl India Ballet [l Pte. Ltd 79.64 1,338.50
Inter corporate deposit taken

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 975.00 96.00
Schloss HMA Private Limited 210.00 40.00
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 565.00 -
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 195.00 -
Inter corporate deposit settlement

Schloss HMA Privale Limited 210.00 40,00
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited ITLOD -
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 165.00 -
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 77.06 -
Interest on inter corporate deposit

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 23.27 4.43
Schloss HMA Private Limited 12.14 0.55
Sehloss Chennai Privarg Limited 8.89 -
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 1.99 -

Interest on 10,50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures
Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings {DIFC) Pyt Limited, holding company 157.79
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36

Settlement in relation with business acquisition

Schioss Chennai Private Limited - 20.24
Schtoss Udaipur Private Limited - 2822
Schless Chanakya Private Limited - 2299
Managerial remuneration*

Mr. Kunal Chauhan 4.44 12.58
Mr. Madhav Sehegal 6.66 -
M. Subrat Sinha 3.74 3.21
* Managerial e afion excludes provision for grafuity and compensated absences, since these are provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation for the

Company as a whaole

{¢) Outstanding balances (Rupees int mitlionsy
. As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Trade payables (Including provisions)

Schloss HMA Private Limited 13.38 25.51

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 0.30 -

Schlass Chennai Private Limited 010 -

Settlement in relation with business acquisition

Schloss Chennai Private Limited - 20.24

Schloss Udeipur Private Limited - 2522

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited - 1299

Other receivable

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 014 -

Trade receivable

Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited 0.16 -

Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited 0.04 -

Receivable against reimbursements

Sehloss HMA Private Limited 1.5% 1.60

Inter corporate deposit taken

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 700.00 96.00

Schloss Chennei Private Limited 400.00 -

Schloss Chanakya Private Limied 117.94

Inferest on intercorporate deposit

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 0.43 4,10

Schloss Chennai Private Limited 0325

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited 055

lnterest acerued but not due on 10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures

Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Lymited, holding company 138.07 -

10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures

BSREP 1il India Ballet 111 Pte Ltd - 1,502.75

Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings (DIFC) Pvt. Limited, holding company 1,502.75 -

(d) Corporate guarantee

Company's fellow subsidiaries i.e. Schloss HMA Private Limited and Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited and the uliimate holding company i.¢. BSREP 11l India
Baller Holdings (DIFC) Limited (from 31 March 2022) and BSREP I1I [ndia Ballet Pre. Lid. (upio 30 March 2022} have given corporate guarantee and fellow
subsidiaries also created charge over their total assets for the term loan and working capital facility availed by the company.

Emplovee benefits

{2} Defined contribution plan

The Company makes provident fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees Under the plan, the Company is required 10 contribure a
specified percentage of the payrol) costs to fund the benefits. The contributions payable under these plans by the Company are at rawes specified in the rules of the
schemes

The coniributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue. The amouni as an expense towards contribution fo providen fund, employees state
insurance and labour welfare fund for the year aggregated to Rs. | 2.60 miltions {Previous period Rs. 11.93 millions).




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 {Continued)

(b} Defined benefit plan

Cirentun:

The Cémpany operates post-employment defined benefil plan thal provides gratity. The Company has partly funded the defined benefit plan for eligible
employees. The scheme provides for lumpsum payment 1o eligible employees on retirement. death while in empleyment or on termination of employment, of an
amount equivalent 10 15 days salary payable for each completed vear of service or part thereof in excess of six months subject 10 a limit of Rs. 20 lakhs. The
unfunded portion as well as the amounts m excess of the limit are fo be borne by the Company as per policy. Eligibility occurs upon completion of five years of
SeIvIce

The present value of the defined benefir obligation and curtent service cost are measured using the projected onit eredit method with actuarial valuations being
carried out at each balance sheet date

The employees of HLV Limited were eligible and covered under the existing Group Gratuity-cumn-Life assurance policies administered through HLY Limited,
Employee Group Gratuity Life Assurance Scheme On 16 October 2019, the Company and Hotel Leelaventure Limited has entered into a Business Transfer
Agreement ("BTA") for acquisition of Bangalore hotel operations (the "Hotel™) of HLV Linuted. Pursuant to BTA, there has been cemplete transfer of employment
a1 the Hote] to the Company and the continuity of services for every employee at the Hotel was conserved. Pending transfer of plan assets and obligations under the
existing policy of HLV Limited, Employee Group Gratuity Life Assurance Scheme to the new policy of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited as at the reporting date,
the Company has considered the fair value of plan assets and obligations pertaining to the transferred employees at the hotel as accumulated under the existing

policies for the purpose of actuarial valuation

The following defails summarises the position of assets and obligations relating to the gratwty plan:

(a) Ch in the present value of the defined benefits obligation {Rupees in nillions}

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 392 35.05
Acquisition adjustment - -
Interest cost 2.16 2.37
Current service cost 3.51 4,48
Benefits paid {5.59) (4.96)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation {5.65} (5.02)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 16.36 31,92

b} Fair value of plan asseis {Rupees in millions,
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 3.29 7.26
Acquisition adjustment 0.26 -
Actuarial returo on plan assers (0.59) 0.49
Employer Conrtribution - 0,50
Benefits paid (1.84) {4.96)
Fait value of plan assets at the end of the year 1.12 3.29
{¢) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet (Rupees in millions)
Particolars Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 26.36 31,92
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1.12 3.19
Liabality to be recognised in the balance sheet 2524 28.63
Recognised as:
Long-term provisions { Refer note 7) 24.68 28.11
Short-term provisions (Refer note 10) 0.58 0.54
36 Employee benefits (continued)
{d} Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet (Rupees in millions)

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net liability at the beginning of the year 3192 3505
Expense recognised in the statement of profit and lass 0.62 1.33
Benefits paid (5.59) {4.96)
Actuarial retwrn on plan assets (0.59) 049
Acquisition adjusiment - -
Met liability at the end of the vear 26.36 31.92

{e) A ts recognised in the statement of profit and loss {Rupees in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended 31
Particulars 31 March 2022 March 2021
Current service cost sl 4.48
Imerest cost .16
Expected retum on plan assets 0.22)
Net actuarial (gain}/ loss recognized in the year {4.83)

0.62




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes t¢ the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 {Continued)

{i} Actuarial gain / loss on obligati {Rupees in nillions)
For the year ended For the year ended 31
Particolars 31 March 2022 March 2021
Actuarial (gan} / }oss ansing from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuanial (gain) / loss arising from change in financial assumption {1.79) -
Actuanal (gain) / Joss anising from expenience adjustment {3.86) (5.02)
Actuanial {gain) / loss on obligation (5.65) (5.02)
{#) Actuarial gain / loss on plan assets {Rupees in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended 31
Particulars 31 March 2022 March 2021
Expected retum on plan assets 0.22 0.51
Actual return on plan assets {0.59) 0.4%
Actuanal gain / (Joss) on plan assets (0.81) {0.02}
{h) Actuarial assnmptions
Particulars As at A at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate 1.26% 6.76%
Expecled return on plan assets T.00% 7.00%
Expected rate of salary increase T.00% 6.76%

Mortality rate

100% of JALM {2012-14)

100% of TALM (2012-14)

The principal assumptions are the discount rate znd salary growth rate. The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on government bonds

at the accounting date relevant to cumency of benefil payments for a term that matches the liabilities. Salary growih rate is Company’s Jong-term best estimate as

10 salary increases and takes into accoont the inflation, seniority, promotion, business plan, HR policies and other relevant faclors on Jong-term basis as provided

in relevant accounting standard

Compensuted absences:

The reversal of compensated absences (non-funded) for current year is. 0.37 millions (Previous pericd ended 31 March 2021 amounting to Rs. 8,43 millions) has
been recognized in the statement of profit and less, based on actuarial valuation carried cut using Projected Unit Credit Method
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37 Sepment Information :

1. Primary [3 2 t Diccl Bus Seg i
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars
Hotel Realty Unallocated Total Hotel Realty  Unallocated Total
|Revenue
Met External Sales 9359 21020 - 1,145.9% 41791 46.13 - 464 03
Inter Segment Sales = - - - - - - -
Total Revenue $5. 79 210.20 - 1.145.5% 417.91 46,13 - 464.03
|Result
Sepment Result (442 30) 15971 {851 (311.18) (751 88) 19 70 {725} (169.43)
Less: Finance Costs - 105 30 112305 122855 - 457 85061 85519
|Profit befere tax (442300 34.21 (1,131.62} (1.539.71) (781.88) 15.13 (B57.86)  (1,624.62)
Income taxes - - - - - = 3 3
|Profit after tax (442,300 34.21 (1,131.62} (1,539,71) (781.88) 15.13 (357.86)  (1,624.62)
OTHER INFORMATION
|Segment Assels 12.201.09 2200 86 54810 14,951 66 | 1229171 2.231.32 137.24  14,66027
Tatal Assets 12,201.0% 2201.86 £48.70 14.951.66 | 12.291.71 2.231.32 137,24 14,660.27
Sepment Liabilities 499 §2 1,18%.63 15,006.50 16,604 95 35250 149810 1309284 1494352
Total Liabilities 499.82 1.188.63 15,006.50 16,694,95 352.5%  1.4%5.10 1309284 14.943.52
Capnal Expenditure 1,400 55 - - 1,400 55 1,742734 184595 - 358870
Drepraciation and Amortisation Expense 45428 1083 321 468 32 48102 540 354 489 95
Non cash exp other thandepreciation 3904 - {851} 3143 5024 - 35611 40636

IL Infgrmation abowi § dary Busi Segments:
There is no 2eographical segment to be reported since all the operations are undertaken in India;‘{‘t




SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Coentinued)

38 Property, plant and equipment as a1 31 March 2022 includes asset acquired under finance lease amounting to Rs 2.39 millions capitalised in line with 1he
requirements of Accounting Standard on "Leases” {AS-19) Depreciation for the peried includes an amount of Rs 0,76 millions (Previous Period: Rs 0,77 millions}
being depreciation charged on these assels

The year-wise break-up of the outstanding lease obligation as on 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 in respect of these assets are as under-

{Rupees in millions}
" As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Assets taken on lease
Total Minimum Lease Payments at year end 1.60 6.40
Present Value of Minimum lease Payments 1.58 6.16
Mot later tham one year
Minimum Lease Payments L.60 4.80
Fresent Value 1.58 4.58
Later than one year but not later than five years
Minimum Lease Payments - 1.60
Present Value - L58
Later than five years
Minimum Lease Payments - -
Present Value - -
3% Unhedged foreign currency exposures as af the reporting date
Foreign currency exposures not hedged by derivative instruments are as follows:
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Foreign currency Rupees in milliens  Foreign currency Rupees in millions
Foreign currency payables
- representing trade payables
EURO = = = =
USD = = 177,163 12.88
Foreign currency receivables
= representing advance
UsD - - - -

40 The Company has taken leasehold land under leave and license agreement for a period of 31 years. The imexpired period under the said agreement as on 31 March
2022 is 15 years. The total rental expense under non-cancellable operating leases rentals for the year ended is Rs. 128.76 millions (Previous pericd ended is Rs

129.55 millicns)
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:
{Rupees in millions)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Mot later than one yeat 96.61 91.01
Later than one year but not later than five years 560,54 533.85
Later than five years 1,379.79 1,503.10
2,036.94 2,128.96
41 Transfer pricing
The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under sections
92.92F of the Income-tax Acl, 1961. The Company's transactions with related parties are at arms length as per the independent aceountant's report for the year
ended 31 Macch 2021
Managemeni believes the Company's transactions with related parties post 31 March 2021 continue o be ar ans length so that the aforesaid legislation will not
have any impact on hese financial stafements, particularly on the amount of tax expenses and thai of provision for tax
42 Utilisation of proceeds from issue of debentures (Rupees in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended 31
Particulars 31 March 2022 March 2021
Proceeds from issue of debentures - L0275

Utilisation during the period
Purchase of hatel under slump sale - -
Stamp duty charges - -
Term loan upfront fee & =
Working capital requirement - -
Purchase of Hotel land -

Unutilized amount as at year end 5




D XS

ME u%"

S

S oW

R

)
=)
)

o

= - - TUAISIALL (S1U0oU| FAUBULY } 15900W] U LMJSIAL] U0 UITRY
pakojdure [ewdes i sseR1Un (1)
PATE SSUISTY] 119G 0) 3P Y(ILIET LN 95ERINT
(1) 3o umesde uo Suewid s1 onel W ISeRISUL | % 19 {£0 0} (190) podojdusy (endesy Liad padojdws pepdey wo uangry
SNUBALI UI DRI JO LNOIE
ue Auewnd s ooz wposd e UT aBelaN|egTg (05 &) {re 1Y 58S PN 81 Jaye 104 19p OEY MpoA JON
FOUE[EQ YSED Ul ISEXIU) J0 IUNQINE
o Aeursd endes Sunpom ur sseaou (i) pue SHIPOELT
TANLBAS] UL ISBIOU {1} JO IUNROXDE U0 AfLrewnsd 1UBLIT ) STRRAY - S195SY JUaung)
s1ooney Jsaaoump  jende) W@N W PEERIN [vEf (P90l (a0 Aeszay 2 Ende] Furyioa, 3esay =Tl TN ] oney saacuan] jende) jap
FasmyoInd W ISERISUN 70 JUNeYYE uo Aueand
S el gsacwing dqedeq spEl] Wl dseaIdu)|eqTei PLO P20 SaQeAEg 2pel] sdemay SSSRUYIY 13N OBy LaAGWIN] ERqRLE SpEA]
SMUBASE U SSEAIMN Jo Jmodse uo Sprewd
S DUBS JAOWIN] ARAIA03Y SPRI] U1 25B30U| | 040 £691 Pi¥E sR[qeAlIYY spel] FRiany suolesado wol) snuassy DIBY HACUIN] EIQBAIIINY IPBI]
QIAOD J0 NG UD Jeak snolxald
U1 SSAUNSNG e el snodaskd o1 paredwos se
JEad (UM Ul 150 Ul I fO uo
ApEwtid SEONES S3A0wng ANOUdAU Ul SSEAII] | #5ce, 01 10T Mojusauy 2ty PlOs spoody Jo 190 onEy Jaanmin ] Lleyuaim]
SIRIA 0N
SAIINIISUD B[l 1] SH650] SSANSNG JO JWMODIE
uo Auewnsd s Anba wo umyas un SEERLR( |wGf 8- L5l 51 Aunbeg (210 $Teay SIXEY ISYE WJON 1PN onpy Annbg ue uanpy
Teak sasuadya
snonagad o pauedwod se mBad Juaimo w asmsod W] nus-fug) o uawdedsy (ediou|  uouEsIowe e sonemadag +
YALIF3 J¢ MO UG ) YIS W asealdu] % ¥ - {9z 0} 1o + SIUAWARY 358 + (1N 11530010] | {1Ap) IS02NI) 4 XE |, a10y30 Nyos] oney a3e1a407) 9214125 Jga(
1A 3} 10) $IFEO] FSATSNY JO JUTOIIE STUMOLOG IUaLm
vo Apmwnd @ omer Ambaagep W ISEN] | 940~ {rg oF) (gl &) fambyg 0] + BRUAMOLIOR WUALINY) - UON ey 4nb3 1qeq
UsMOpMEIP TOHD
01 np siwejeainba yses pue (seo ul s Jo
unooe 1o Apewisd 5] OB JUALIND UY 35BN 04667 10 o SANIGEST LNy N =Ty oLpey JudLIE’y
SyIEmaY BBy v | LTOZ YMEW ISIE | TTOT YXMEIY ISIE 108U mOwI() A0IRATIMDN sIsA(RUY D8y
¥SIUD W3 334 PUE SiShjeuy ooy £r

{panunuoy) ZT07 PIRIY 1€ PAPUS 1834 3Y) J0) BIUSIDNEIS |EYIEUL ) 03 £330

THLIWIT ALYAIRd AMOTYONYE S80THDE



TE0Z #quardsg g7 =18 TZ0T 49qudag g7 e

TBqUIA) J30e Ly lequmpy “oelq
BEOLIBLO ‘NI £8SP11 aqumy digraaquiapy
HpRng e 4
JEuLyl LAy g
\J“ -\Q
77778 FotS. o
COPLYEDLAGIL N ZZO001-AUMBEZ 101 1O uoilexsiday uuy
PaN L AL, S SIHEIURCIDY Pasdle]’)

O SIOPRAIP 19 IO 2 dTT PP HEA 404

1961 0¥ XBL $WOSU) M o SUCIHA0M WEAH S A 10 ADAIS 10 (1ESS 5B

Yoms) 1961 19y XL AU aY) JApUn SWMISSISTE XEL ) W S22 311 BU0M] RIWODUT 56 PISOJISIP JO PAULILMS LY sey TEE] SJUNDYIE JO 59000 ) LT PAPIOIN KOU §1 I3IGM UOIIIESUEL) LINS AR SABY 10U $90p Auediio?) ag [ (s
soueIcIuag

FEUNIN BU1 IO JEYeq UD 1) Syt 10 Amaas “asmionT AUt apiosd IO (§3LRILIIUIE oW [1) A4 SWPUN 1P JO B V0 T0 £q JIAFOEYM I5UURLI AUE WL PALINLIPI SIS 20 FUORIO IO Ul 134 JO P3| ANFANPUI

15 APanp |(8ys Auedmio;) 241 e (SEHIIYI0 Jo Suntim ut pap Iy Buip P st (iss (ALied Supam g) saliius udiziog Bupnjomn ‘(521)fnue 0 (Suossd AR woay pumy A Panaoar ot aaeg Ausdwos ML (A}
CESLMUSE NRUNITY AU JO [IRYR] U0 S0 0) ] 3G 10 SLmoss ‘aapmim AUe apratud o [Sameemg S1ea) Aued SHJ1J0 Y[R U0 I K1) JIwSOTIRYAL JAUURW SUE W DOHILEPT SAU09 X sucsad Tag

A I0 puz] ATRRIpU S0 S0P 19y Lmp U Ay v dup PUT 21 YI (S2LDIPULIZA ) S3HUS Wli2a0) Suipnjmn {sH)Aus 10 (sJuoszd IHI0 Aub 0} Shun) pe1ssaar X pAUSD] 40 POTURAPE YOU J4EY Auedwnry Ay (L
ek eiatreay ay) Auinp AU3un ) e A 10 ADaUN3 03dAi) 1 palart] S0 papea 10U aany Auedwo g (4

“Aradosd numuag S fuipiol) Jop Aueduo 2y sy ume Fuipuad o pa) URD SeL g d Lue s *Ausdod wwtuag Aue saty 1ou op Aunduwoy ay g (ar
'L10T "ty {2IAAET J0 1aquinn D LoUERY) Sauedisn) 31 Yitm peas 13y salundwio 41 Jo 7 waNaas Je (48) @snz(a sapun paquasad siaAR| 10 10GIN 811 1w soum|diwod w 5 Sumdwio sy (i
pouat £ 115 21 puedsg duwoy jo nn oI | A OF 1A S UM oS 1o saflieys Sum aat jou op fueduoy @y
‘PIRICS 14 SPUNJ ()
Y 20y 350dind SipaIds 21 J0) PARNN U AAEY SPUNY [ 1341 suonORiSUl [RIJUE PuB SYUAQ WOy STUMOLOq tual Bud| puB SaRIGos JO ONsSL AUB Jo 139059 U) SIINOWS PSR NI OU S| 4041 T70T 1€ Y28y uo S (i

Y MY 1] BPHPS W P siepew Sagie 91 paeBes ik wop R0 u) [

So0Bd1009 )0 JHTUTS LI EIOTRESUEL G18 HE A1) “SHUBTUS LJO UK 1O (GR{TEAE 51 UDTIEULIOWN Judlxs 2y 01 somediwes Jjo yonts Tl FUOIIREUG At 2t U] 1 ANUSPY O BUONDESUEL) PrAtA) sby Auedwse ) 3y ]

SN WD) JJU RINING NI WORITINES] r

(Penupuo) ZZNT YH4RIA TE Pepee ead a0 50) SIIAWI)EYS [BOREUL JY) OF FAI0N
QELIAIT ILVAIND THOTYDNYE SSOTHOS



SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office: The Leela Palace, Diplomatic Enclave, Africa Avenue, Netaji Nagar New Delhi South

Delhi 110023 Tel No. +91 (11) 39331234 Email 1d; cs{@theleela.com
CIN: U55209DL2019PTC347492

DIRECTORS' REPORT
Dear Shareholders,

On bohalf of the Board of Directors, it is our pleasure to present the Third Annual Report of Schloss
Bangalore Private Limited together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the financial year
ended March 31, 2022,

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited (“the company”) an Indian subsidiary of Project Ballet Bangalore
Holdings (DIFC) Pvt Ltd was incorporated on 20 March 2018 under the provisions of Companies Act,
2013, having its registered office at The Leelas Palace, Diplomatic Enclave, Africa Avenus, Netaji
Nagar New Delhi South Delhi 110023. The company started its operations effective from 17 October
2019 by sequiring Bangalore hotel undertaking of HLV Limited. The company is in the hospitality
industry and operates hotel undsr the brand name of "THE LEELA®.

Highlights of Financial Performance

Your company’s Standalone performanes during the Financial Year 2021-22 as compared with that
of the previous Financial Year 2020-21 as summarized below.

{INR miilions)

Particulars Financial Year 2021-22 Financial Year 2020-21
Total Income 117737 486.86

Total Expense (2,717.08) (2111.476}
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (1,639.71) (1624.62)
Provision for Tax - .
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (1,539.71) (1624.62)
Balance brought forward from previous - -

Year

Profit/(Loss) carried to Balance Sheet (1,539.71) (1624.62)

Summary of operation during the Current year ended on 31 March 2022

During the financial year under consideration, the company incurred loss of INR, 1,539.71M, Going
ahead, the directors are taking all steps to improve the performance of the company.

Covid-19 Tmpact

The company has assessod the potential impact of Covid-19 on its capital and financial resources,
profitability and overall liguidity position. In developing the assumplions and estimates relating to
the future uncertainties in the economie conditions beeause of this pandamie, the company as at the
date of approval of thess financial statements has used internal and extornal sources of information
and based on current estimates, expects to recover the carrving amounts of assets. The impact of
Covid® 19 may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these fAnancial
statements. The company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic
conditions as the COVID-19 situation continues to evolve,
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Dividend
No dividend was declared/paid during the financial year ended March 31, 2022,
Tranafer to Reserves

During the financial year ended March 31, 2022 company incurved losses so have not transforred
any amount (o Reserves,

Change in nature of business

There is no change in business of the company during the period under review.
Share Capital

Authorized Share capital

The authorized share capital of your company as at 31% March 2022 stood at INR 676M divided into
67,600,000 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 10/ (Rupees Ten Only) each.

Purther, there is no change in the aulhorized share capital till date.
Issue/paid-up share capital

The suthorized share capital of your company ae at 31® March 2022 stopd at INR 201.70M divided
inta 20,169,566 equity shares of the face value of Rs. 105 (Rupees Ten Only) sach.

During the year under review following allotments ave made

Allotoe Date of No. of Sharea | Face Value | Premium

Allotmant Allotted {In INR)} {In INR)
BSREP III India Ballet 111 Pte. Ltd. | 23-04-2021 4.46,3560 10 90
BSREP I11 India Ballot 111 Pte. Ltd. 26-04-2021 3,650,000 10 ]

Further, there is no change in issued/paid-up share capital till date.
Transfer of shares/Debenture

During the year under review below transfoer of shares took place

gl Type  of | Transferor Traneferes Number of

Mo Securities Shares

Equity BSREP 1II India Ballet | BSREFP III India Ballet Holdings 1
Pte. Lid. (DIFC) Limited

z Equity BSREP Il Indin Ballet | Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings | 2,01,69,666
111 Pte. Litd. (DIFC) Pvt Ltd

3 Debonture | BEREP 11 India Ballet | Project Ballet Bangalore Holdings | 1.60,27, 488
111 Pte. Ltd, (DIFC) Pvt Ltd
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Debentures

There is no issue/ellotment of debentures or other securities during the year.

Deposits

Company has nol accepted any deposit within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Acceplance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

During the year undoer review, Schloss Chanakya Private Limited coased to be fellow subsidiary of
the company we.f 30 March 2022 and Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited became fallow subsidiary
of the company w.e.i. 03 May 2021. The partienlar of fellow subsidisriss is annexed ag Annexure "4’
to the Board report.

However, Schloss Channkys Private Limited continue to be related party as having ecommon
directors,

afelihye of iractors an

The present directors of the company are Mr. Ravi Shankar. Mr. Anursag Bhatnagar and Mr.
Madhav Sahgal.

Further, as per the provision of section 2(51) and section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, there are
no key managerial personnel in the company.

During the financial year ended Mavch 31, 2022 and up to the date of this report, the fallowing
changes took place in the Board of Directors of the company:

Name of the Director Designation Date of Appointment Date of Resignation
Mr. Rajiv Raval Additional Divector 26.00.2019 11.08.2081
Myr. Rachit Kothari Director 18.09.2019 11.08.2021
Mr. Anurnag Maena Additional Divector 26.00.2019 11.08.2021
Mr. Madhav Sehgal Additional Director 31.05.2022 :

M. Madhav Sehgal was appointed as an Additional Director at the Board meeting held on May 31,
2022, and being eligible, offer himself for vegularization of his appointment at this AGM.

The Board met thirteen times during the financial year ended 31st March 2022, The date of Board
moeetings aro 05.04.2021, 30.04.2021, 06.07.2021, 16.07.2021, 11.08.2021, 13.00.2021, 1B.10.2021,
18.10.2021, 15.12.2021, 04.01.2022, 06.01.2022, 01.02.2022, 31.03.2022.

The Anditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark
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Statutory Auditors

M/s BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants have been appomted for five years in the first Annual
General Meeting and thus, are holding office of the statutory auditors of the company from the
contlusion of 1st Annual Genoral Mooting until the eonclusion of the 6th Annual Genaral Meoting.

Internal Financial Control and ite adegquacy

Internal Fimancial Control means the polinesiprocedures adopted by the company for snsurving the
orderly and efficient conduct of business, including adherence to the same, the safeguarding of
company's assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information / statements.
The company has adhered to the internal finanecial control with reference to its financial statementa.

Vigil Mechanism

The company has in place a vigil mechanism that provides adequate safeguards against
victimization of employees/divectors who avall of the vigil mechanism and provide for direct access to
the Board of Directors, in excoptional cases, thereby ensuring that the activities of the company are
conducted in a fair and transparent manner.

During the financial year undor review, the company has nol given any loan, guarantes in terms of
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,

However, during the financial year the company have made investment in equity shares of Green
[nfra Wind Powar Generation Limited amounting to INR 0.18M.

Related Party Transactions

All the related party transactions entered during the financial year were in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm's length pricing basis. The particulars of such transactions are annexed as
“Annexure B" to the Board Report.

muﬁ.l ﬁnﬂit E!m:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder, the
Board has appointed, M/s HD And Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, (Membership No
47700 and CP No. 21073) to conduct the secretarial audit of the company. The Secretarial Audit
Report for the financial yvear ended 31st March 2022, i= unnexed herewith and marked as Annexure
'C’ to this Report,

The provigion of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
are notapplicable on the company.
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The provision of Section 149 pertaining to the sppointment of Independent Director do not apply on
the company,

No material changes affecting financial position of the company ovcurred after close of financial vear
and up to the date of this report.

(AYPursuant to the provisions under Section 134(5) of the Companics Act, 2013, with respect to
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, the Directors confirm that:

i. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standavde have been
followed and no material departures have besn made from the same:

ii, The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently, and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of ﬂ::ﬁ.llﬂ of the company at the end of the financial vear and of the loss of the company for
that period;

iii. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in aecordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assels
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities:

The Directors had prepared the annual sccounts on a going concern basis: and

The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systoms were adequate and operating effectivaly.

The ¢ompany being unhsted, sub clause (o) of section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013
pertaining to laying down internal inancial contrals is not applicable te the company.

<@

(B)The details in respect of frauds reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of ssetion 143 other
than thoss which are veportable to the Central Government: None

The details of Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and
Qutgo are as under:

A. Conservation of Energy:

The steps taken or impnct on conservation of
energy

The company has talien adegquate steps,
wherever possible, to conserve the energy during
the vear under report.

The steps taken by the company for utilising
alternate sources of energy

The company will explore the options o utilize
alternative sources of energy, wherever possible

The capital investment on energy conservation
|_equipment

NIL
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B. Technology Absorption:

The efforts made towards technology absorption NIL

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or | NIL
impart substitution

In casa of imported technology — the details of technology imported, year of import, | NIL
whether the technology has been fully absorbed, if not fully absorbed, areas whare

absorplion has pot tuken place and the reasons Lhereof

The expenditure incurred on research and development NIL

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings/ Outgo (in INR Millions)

Earnings 132.97
Outgo 24.21

Risk nt

The processes and practices of risk management encompass rigk identification, c¢lassification, and
avaluation. The company identifies all steategic, operational, and fnancial risks that the company
facos, by nesessing and analysing the latest trends in risk information available internally and
externally and using the same to plan for risk manggement.

Particulars of Employees

The list of emplovees whose details are required pursuant to Rule 5{2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, if applicable, is svailable
with company and can be produced on demand

No significant or material order / judgment have been passed against [ in favour of the company
during the year.

However, during the yvear under review, the company received order from Hon'ble Regional Director
(Northern Region) for compounding of default committed under section 98 of the Companies Aet,
2013, Due to Covid pandemiec, there was an unintentional delay in holding 1st Annual General
Mesting of the company within the time limit prescribed by the Companies Aet, 2013, henece
Compounding application was filed with Registrar of Companies, Delhi and Haryansa.

The Company was not required to prepare and maintain cost records as apecified by the Central
Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per the provision of Section 186(5) The Board of every company referred to in sub-section (1),
ghall ensure that the company spends, in every financial yvear, al least two per cent of the averags
net profits of the company made during the thres immediatsly preceding financial years or where the
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company has not completed the year of three financial years since its incorporation, during such
immedintely preceding financial years in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responaibility Policy

The company does nol meet the criterin as specified above, therefore, the provisions relating to
Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable,

Sufe & Conducive Workplace

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees.
During the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant lo the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013,

Compliance of Secretarial Standards

The secretarial atandards on meetings of Board and shareholdars issued by the Institute of Company
Becretaries of India have been duly complied in vespect of the mestings of Board and shareholders
held during the year,

D aligati

All equity shares and Debentures issued by the company are in demat form as on the date of the
report,

Acknowledgement

The directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation and gratitude to the various offices of
Government, Reserve Bank of India, the Registrar of Companies, Bankere and to the Shareholders
for their co-operation in functioning of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directora

Name: Anuraag B agar
Designation: Director
DIN: 07967086

FPlace: Mumbai
Date! September 28, 2022

o Gl

MName: Ravi Shankar
Designation: Dirsctor
DIN: 07867038
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ANNEXURE A

FORM AOC-1
Statement pursuant to Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013
Statement containing salient features of the financial statoment of subsidiarvies/ associate

eompanisa’ joint ventures
Part "A™:
Subsidinries- Details of Fellow Subsidiaries are as below

Sl No | Nume of the Fellow Bubsidiary Date of association

1 Schlogs HMA Private Limited 11 September 2019

2 Schloss Chennai Private Limited 11 September 2019

4 Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 11 September 2019

d Schilose Gandhinagar Private Limited 11 Septamboy 2019

i Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited 16 October 2018

@ Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limitad 03 May 2021

Part “B": Associates - NIL

The following information shall be furnished:-
1. Names of associales or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: NA
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.-NA.

Far and on behalf of the Board of Dhirectors

2 (o Uula

Name: Ravi Shankar
Designation: Yirector
DIN: 07967039

Designation:
DIN: 07967035

Place: Mumbai
Date’ September 28,
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CANNEXURE B'
FORM NO. AODC.2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

[Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for diselosure of particulars of contractsfarrangements entered into by the company with
velated parties reforred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

arm’s length transactions under third provizo thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basia: NA

8l .
No | Particulars Details
a__ | Name of the related Parties
b. | Nature of relationship
c. | Nature of contracts/arrangementsitransactions
d. | Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions
o, | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if Not
sny : Applicable
L Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transsetions
| g | datels) of approval by the Board
h. | Amount paid ss advances, if any:
k. | Date on which the special resolution was passed in goneral meeting as required undey
first proviso to section 188
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis:
8l a. b c d € f g
No | Name | Natureof Nature of Duration of Salient terme of the Datela) of | Amount
of relationship confracts/ the contracts contracts or approval by | paid as
Related arrangements/ | farrangements/ ArTAngements or the Board, | advances,
Party transactions transactions transactions if any: if any
including the value, if
Any:
Refor Note No ~ 35 of the Notes to Account of the Financials for the year ended 31.3.3022

All the related party transactions arve on arm's length basis or in ordinary course of business.

For and on behalfl 5f the Beard of Directors

Name: Ravi Shankar

Designation’ Director
DIN: 07967085

Designation® Director
DIN: 0796870589

Placa! Mumbai
Date: Beplamber 28, 2022



HD AND ASSOCIATES

COMPANY SECRETARIES

Address: Shop No. 7 BadamWadi, Marwadi Chawl,

Grant Road (East), Mumbai - 400 004.

Email : Hardik@hdandassociates.com ; Mob.: +91-9699610825

MR-3 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 315T MARCH, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014]

To

The Members,

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited,
(CIN: U55209DL2019PTC347492)

The Leela Palace, Diplomatic Enclave,
Africa Avenue, Netaji Nagar,

New Delhi, South Delhi- 110023

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by SCHLOSS BANGALORE
PRIVATE LIMITED. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification conducted through Electronic Mode of the Company’s books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period ended on 31stMarch, 2022,
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers and minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31t March
2022, to the extent applicable provisions of:
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ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA") and the Rules made

thereunder;
iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct

Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

v) Labour and Industrial Laws, as applicable to the Company, as mentioned in the

Annexure.

vi) The Securities of the Company are not listed with any Stock Exchange, therefore
Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board

of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act) are not applicable.

vii) We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for
systems and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under the
other applicable Act, Laws and Regulations to the Company. Therefore, we are
of the opinion that the management has adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and

guidelines.

viii) The laws, as informed and certified by the management of the Company which

are specifically applicable to the Company based on their sector/industry are:
2 Food Safety & Standard Act 2006;

® Food Safety and Standard Rules 2011;

. Food Safety and Standards (Packaging and Labeling) Regulations 2011.

Beside above, the Company has complied with the applicable central and state laws,
including those related to Environment, Legal Metrology Act laws pertaining to the

hotels of the Company. The Company has also obtained/ applied for the necessary
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licenses/ registrations/approvals from respective authorities which are mandatory to

run activities related to businesses of the Company.

ix) The Management has identified and confirmed the applicable Acts, Laws and
Regulations specifically applicable to the Company as specified in ANNEXURE
B.

We have also examined compliances with the applicable clauses of the following;:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
along with revised Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 as issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India with effect from 01t October, 2017.

ii. Since the Company is an Unlisted Company no provisions of listing agreement
are applicable to the Company.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines and Standards as mentioned above, subject to the
following observation(s):

i. The Company had filed Compounding Application before the Honble Regional
Director, Northern Region, New Delhi, Delhi pursuant to Section 441 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for compounding of offences under section 96 read with
section 99 of the Companies Act, 2013 and order for the same is reserved and
approved as on date of signing of this Report.

ii. The Company issued and allotted 446,350 Equity Share of Face Value of INR.
10/- each issued at Premium of INR. 90/- each and 350,000 Equity Shares Face
Value of INR. 10/ - each issued at Premium of INR. 90/- each to BSREP III India
Ballet IIT Pte. Ltd. dated 23rd April, 2022 and 26% April, 2022 respectively for
which the Company has secured the Valuation Report dated 02nd March, 2021
from R V Shah & Associates, Chartered Accountants and relevant e-Form PAS-
3 was filed by the Company within stipulated time as prescribed under
Companies Act, 2013 however the delay was held in Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) Reporting of both Form FC-
GPR, the Company has paid the LSF accordingly, final approval email from the
RBI of reported both FCGPR reporting is secured as on Signing of this Report.
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iii. The Company has filed MSME Form I as required under Section 405 of the
Companies Act, 2013 for the period 01st April 2021 to 30th September 2021 on
26th September 2022 and for the period 01st October 2021 to 31st March 2022
there were no outstanding payment due to Micro or Small Enterprises registered
vendors hence the reporting of MSME Form I was not applicable.

iv. The Company has not appointed Whole-Time Company Secretary as required
under Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 and Rule 8A
Companies Appointment and Remuneration to Managerial Personnel Rule
2014.

We further report that:

Following Changes were held in constitution of Board of Directors of the Company
during the period of signing of this Report:

i. Mr. Rajiv Raval (DIN: 07274069)had resigned from the post of an Additional
Director with effect from 11t August, 2021;

ii. Mr. Rachit Kothari (DIN: 07274069), had resigned from the post of Director with
effect from 11% August, 2021;

iii. Mr. Anuraag Meena (DIN: 08353973) had resigned from the post of an
Additional Director with effect from 11t August, 2021

iv. Mr. Madhav Sehgal (DIN: 09611058) had appointed as an Additional Director of
the Company with effect from 31st May, 2022

Except this the Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper balance
of Executive Directors and Non- Executive Directors. The changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried
out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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We further report that during the audit period:

The Company has obtained Shareholders approval in the 02"4 Annual General Meeting
for the Investment under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013;

The Company has obtained Shareholders approval in the Extra- Ordinary General
Meeting for:

e Conversion of Debt into Equity under Section 62(3) of Companies Act, 2013 for
credit facility, Lease Rental Discounting (LRD) for an aggregate principal amount
not exceeding INR 110 crores from State Bank of India in the event of default for
repayment by the Company under the lending arrangement;

e The Alteration of Clause 76(ii) of the Articles of Association of the Company as per
provisions of Section 14 and other applicable Provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules 2014;

o To Grant of Loan in terms of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the entities

in which director(s) of the Company are also holding directorship i.e:

a. Schloss Chanakya Private Limited;

b. Schloss Chennai Private Limited;

c. Schloss HMA Private Limited;

d. Schloss Udaipur Private Limited

e. Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited;
not exceeding Individual limit up to Rs.100,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred Crore
only) in one or more tranches, to each of the borrowing entity at Prevailing Bank
Lending Rate repayable on demand.

A\
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Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as

ANNEXURE A and forms as integral part of this report.
FOR HD AND ASSOCIATES

' SECRETARIES

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY

PLACE: MUMBAI PROPRIETOR
DATE: 05T OCTOBER 2022 ACS NO. 47700 C.P.NO.: 21073
UDIN: A047700D001137888 FRN: S2018MH634200

PEER REVIEW NO: 2208/2022

Disclaimer:

1. The above report is based on the information and data available provided by the Company.

2. This report is not to be construed as a compliance report of the Company in any regard and it is just a

compilation of the information provided by the Company and is subject to typographical & human errors.

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY
PROPRIETOR
ACS NO. 47700 C.P.NO.: 21073
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ANNEXURE-A TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT

To,

The Members,

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited,
(CIN: U55209DL2019PTC347492)

The Leela Palace, Diplomatic Enclave,

Africa Avenue, Netaji Nagar,

New Delhi, South Delhi- 110023

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records

based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial
records. The verification was done on test-check basis to ensure that correct facts
are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices, I

followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and

books of accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained Management Representation about the

Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of eventsiefes::
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5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was

limited to the verification of procedures on test-check basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has

conducted the affairs of the Company.
FOR HD AND ASSOCIATES

ARJI
PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY

PLACE: MUMBAI PROPRIETOR

DATE: 05T7H OCTOBER 2022 ACS NO. 47700 C.P.NO.; 21073

UDIN: A047700D001137888 FRN: S2018MH634200

PEER REVIEW NO: 2208/2022
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ANNEXURE- B TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT
LIST OF OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS TO THE COMPANY

Under the Major Group and Head:

1 Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;
2 Employees Provident Fund and Misc. Provisions Act, 1952;
3 Industrial Disputes Act, 1947;
4 Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;
5 Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;
6 Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923;
7 Shops and Establishment Act, 1954;
8 Minimum Wages Act, 1948;
9 Payment of Wages Act, 1936;
10 Trade Unions Act, 1926;
11 Income Tax Act, 1961;
12 Profession Tax Act, 1975;
13 Hotel Insurance Policies and Other Local Laws.
FOR HD AND ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES
PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY
PLACE: MUMBAI PROPRIETOR
DATE: 05TH OCTOBER 2022 ACS NO. 47700 C.P.NO.: 21073
UDIN: A047700D001137888 FRN: 52018MH634200

PEER REVIEW NO: 2208/2022
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NOTICE FOR CALLING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Third Annual General Meeting of the members of Schloss Bangalore Private
Limited will be held on Friday, September 30, 2022 at 10.00 A.M. at Ground Floor, Tower No.2, Equinox
Business Park, Kurla, Mumbai-400070 fo fransact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone Audited Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement as at
31st March 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date together with the
reports of Auditors ‘and Directors ‘thereon.

“RESOLVED THAT the Directors’ Report, Auditor’s report, Balance sheet and profit and loss account
including all schedules and notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2022, be and is hereby approved and adopted.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any director of the company be and is hereby severally authorized to digitally
sign and file Form AOC-4, Form MGT-7 and other applicable forms, if any to give effect to the above
resolution with the registrar of companies.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

2. To approve the appointment of Mr. Madhav Sehgal (DIN: 09611058), as a director:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149,150,152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors), Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), approval of the members be and is
hereby accorded for appointment of Mr. Madhav Sehgal (DIN: 09611058), who was appointed as an
Additional Director w.e.f. 31.05.2022 pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act,
2013 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting, as a Director of the
Company.”

3. To consider and approve to grant of loan/advance in terms of section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier resolutions approved by the shareholders, pursuant to the
provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory modifications,
amendments or re-enactments thereto for the time being in force), approval of shareholders of the
Company be and is hereby accorded for loan/advance given/proposed to be given by the Company
as per the following details:

SIno | Particulars Details

(i) Name of Borrower (s) Following entities in which director(s) of the Company are
also holding directorship -

(a) Schloss Chanakya Private Limited;

(b) Schloss HMA Private Limited;

(c) Schloss Chennai Private Limited;

(d) Schloss Udaipur Private Limited

(e) Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited

(i) Amount of Loan/Advance Individual limit up to Rs.100,00,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred
Crore only) in one or more tranches, to each of the
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borrowing entity
(iii) Rate of Interest Prevailing Bank Lending Rate or 12.5% whichever is higher
(iv) Period of Loan/Advance Repayable on demand

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the loan(s)/advance(s) as specified above shall be utilized by the Borrower(s)
for their principal business activities.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of Directors be and
are hereby authorized to finalize, settle, and execute such documents, papers and agreements as may
be required and do all acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem
necessary, proper or desirable.

4. To consider and approve to Investment under section 186 of the Companies Act 2013

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
special resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier resolutions approved by the shareholders, pursuant to the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with The Companies (Meetings of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), if
any, consent of the shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded to (a) give any loan to
any person(s) or other body corporate(s); (b) give any guarantee or provide security in connection with
aloan to any person(s) or other body corporate(s); and (c) acquire by way of subscription, purchase or
otherwise, securities of any other body corporate from time fo fime in one or more tfranches as the
Board of Directors as in their absolute discretion deem beneficial and in the interest of the Company,
subject however that the aggregate of the loans and investments so far made in and the amount for
which guarantees or securities have so far been provided to all persons or bodies corporate along with
the investments, loans, guarantees or securities proposed to be made or given or provided by the
Company, from time to time, in future, shall not exceed a sum of INR 100 Crs (INR One Hundred Crores
Only) over and above the limit of 60% of the paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium
account of the Company or 100% of free reserves and securities premium account of the Company,
whichever is more, as prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all
acts, deeds and things as are necessary or expedient in this regard.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

For Schloss Bangalore Private Limited
Digitally signed by ravi
raVi S h a n ka r ISDPlxat:(;lrJZZ.OQZQ 15:08:21
+05'30"
Ravi Shankar
Director
DIN: 07967039

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 28, 2022
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NOTES:

1.

A member entitled to aftend and vote af the Annual General Meeting (hereinafter known ‘“the
Meeting”) is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on poll instead of himself / herself. The
proxy need not be a member of the Company. A blank form of proxy is enclosed herewith and if
intfended to be used, it should be deposited duly filled-up at the registered office of the Company not
less than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate
not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member
holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights may
appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or
shareholder.

The Register of Directors and their shareholding, maintained u/s 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Register of Confracts or Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained u/s 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and all other documents referred to in the notice and explanatory statement,
will be available for inspection by the members of the Company at Registered office of the Company
during business hours 10:00 A.M. to 06:00 P.M. (except Saturday and Sunday) up to the date of Annual
General Meeting and will also be available during the Annual General Meeting.

During the period beginning 24 hours before the fime fixed for the commencement of the meeting
and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies
lodged at any time during the business hours of the Company, provided that not less than three days
of noftice in writing is given to the Company.

A Route Map along with Prominent Landmark for easy location to reach the venue of Annual General
Meeting is annexed with the notice of Annual General Meeting.

Members/proxies attending the meeting are requested to bring their duly filled admission/ attendance
slips sent along with the notice of annual general meeting at the meeting.

Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are
advised to send a duly certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend
and vote at the meeting.

Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to the
Special Business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.

Members are requested to notify the Company immediately of any change in their registered
addresses.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

[EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN PURSUANT TO THE PROVISION OF SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013]

SPECIAL BUSNIESS

ltem No. 2

Mr. Madhav Sehgal was appointed as an Additional Director of the company on May 31, 2022 under the
provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and would holds office upto the date of ensuing
Annual General Meeting. He is being eligible for re- appointment, offer himself under the provisions of
Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, for being appointed as director of the Company.

The resolutions seek the approval of the members for the appointment of Mr. Madhav Sehgal as Director of
the Company.

Except Mr. Madhav Sehgal, none of the Directors or their relatives are in any way concerned with or
interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution at Item no. 2 of the accompanying notice. The Board
recommends the resolution at Iltfem no.2 to be passed as Ordinary Resolution.

ltem No. 3

The Company to run its business operation effectively may lend/ advance loan to its fellow
subsidiaries/entities as specified in the resolution set out above.

In terms of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the shareholders by way of special
resolution is required in respect of loans/advances given/proposed to be given fo companies in which
director(s) of the Company are also holding directorship. The Company proposes for approval to the
loan(s)/advance(s) given to be given to the entities in which directors of the Company are also holding
directorship. The name of entities and the terms at which loan(s)/advances(s) given /proposed to be given
are specified in the resolution set out above.

The Board recommends the resolution as set out in the accompanying notice to the members for their
consideration and approval.

None of the directors or their relatives is interested in the said resolution.
ltem No. 4

In order to make optimum use of funds available with the Company and also to achieve long term
strategic and business objectives, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes to make use of the
same by making investment in other bodies corporate or granting loans, giving guarantee or providing
security to other persons or other body corporate as and when required. Members may note that pursuant
to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company can give loan or give any guarantee or provide
security in connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person and acquire securities of any
other body corporate, in excess of 60% of its paid up share capital, free reserves and securifies premium
account or 100% of its free reserves and securities premium account, whichever is more, with approval of
Members by special resolution passed at the general meeting.

In view of the aforesaid, it is proposed to take approval under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, by
way of special resolution, up to a limit of INR 100 Crs (INR Hundred Crores Only), as proposed in the Notice.

The above proposal is in the interest of the Company and the Board recommends the Resolution as set out
at Item No.2 for approval by the members of the Company.
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None of the Directors or their relatives are in any way concerned with or interested, financially or otherwise
in the resolution at Item no. 2 of the accompanying notice. The Board recommends the resolution at Item
no.2 to be passed as Special Resolution.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

For Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

Digitally signed by ravi
shankar

raVI S h a n ka r Date: 2022.09.29 15:08:51
+05'30'

Ravi Shankar

Director

DIN: 07967039

Place: Mumbai
Date: September 28, 2022
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ATTENDANCE SLIP FOR ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U55209DL2019PTC347492

Registered Office: The Leela Palace, Diplomatic Enclave, Africa Avenue, Netaji Nagar New Delhi South Delhi 110023

Venue OF Annual General Meeting: - Ground Floor, Tower No.2, Equinox Business Park, Kurla, Mumbai-
400070 at 10:00 A.M

Third Annual General Meeting, September 30, 2022

Folio No./DP ID Client ID No.

Name of First Named Member/Proxy/Authorized
Representative

Name of Joint Member(s), if any:

No. of Shares held

Name of the Member/Proxy
(In BLOCK Letters)
Signature of the Member/Proxy/
Authorized Representative

Note:

1. Members/Proxy holders are requested to bring their attendance slip with them when they come to
attend the meeting and hand it over at the entrance after signing it.

2. Members/Proxy holders who come to attend at the meeting are requested to bring their copies of the
Notice convening this Annual General meeting.
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management

and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN

U55209DL2019PTC347492

Name of the Company

SCHLOSS BANGALORE PRIVATE LIMITED

Registered Office

The Leela Palace, Diplomatic Enclave, Africa Avenue, Netaji Nagar New
Delhi South Delhi 110023

Venue of Annual Generdl
Meeting

Ground Floor, Tower No.2, Equinox Business Park, Kurla, Mumbai-400070

I/ We, being the member (s) of Schloss Bangalore Private Limited holding....... shares of the above named

Company, hereby appoint

1 Name:

Address:

E-mail ID:

Signature:

2 Name:

Address:

E-mail ID:

Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at an Annual General
Meeting of members of the Company, to be held on Friday, the 30" day of September 2022 at 10:00 AM at
Ground Floor, Tower No.2, Equinox Business Park, Kurla, Mumbai-400070 and at any adjournment thereof in
respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Sr. No. | Ordinary Resolutions

For Against Abstain

1

To adopt the standalone Audited Financial Statements for
the financial year ended 315t March 2022 together with the
Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon

Special Business

2 To approve the appointment of Mr. Madhav Sehgal (DIN:
09611058), as a director.

3 To consider and approve to grant of loan/advance in
terms of section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013.

4 To consider and approve to Investment under section 186
of the Companies Act 2013.

Signed this day of 2022

Signature of Shareholder(s)
Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Signed this day of 2022

Signature of Shareholder(s)
Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note:

Affix Revenue
Stamp

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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2. It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the “For” or “Against” column blank against any or
all of the resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may deem appropriate.

Road map for the Venue is enclosed
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